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          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to today's oversight hearing.

          4                 As you may already know, this

          5  Committee held an oversight hearing on August 10th,

          6  1999, on the alleged closing of North Central Bronx

          7  Hospital, and let me just say, since he is sitting

          8  on my left, the resolution calling for the

          9  appropriate Committee of the Council on that

         10  oversight was introduced by my distinguished

         11  colleague from the Bronx, Council Member June

         12  Eisland.

         13                 At that hearing we heard Dr. Luis

         14  Marcos of the Health and Hospitals Corporation say

         15  that North Central Bronx Hospital would not close,

         16  and in fact, he described improvements that were

         17  being undertaken for the hospital and the community

         18  it serves.

         19                 At the hearing we also heard the

         20  concerns of the Bronx Borough President, the

         21  honorable Fernando Ferrer, and other Bronx elected

         22  officials. We also heard from many concerned members

         23  of the Bronx community.

         24                 At the hearing, Dr. Marcos, and Mr.

         25  Joseph Orlando, the Network Vice President of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  North Bronx, stated that there would be better

          3  communications between elected officials and the

          4  community, in matters regarding North Central Bronx

          5  Hospital. However, the very next day, the same

          6  officials were quoted in the press and on television

          7  that there are plans to house homeless citizens at

          8  North Central Bronx and Harlem Hospital.

          9                 It was also noted in the press that

         10  NCB, North Central Bronx, lost a contract with the

         11  Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and

         12  Alcoholism Services, because of rumors of its

         13  closing.

         14                 As a result, I decided to bring back

         15  Dr. Luis Marcos and other HHC officials, and the

         16  Commissioner of the Department of Mental Health,

         17  Mental Retardation and Alcoholism Services, Dr. Neal

         18  Cohen, due to the health emergency involving

         19  mosquitos, Dr. Cohen will not make it to today's

         20  hearing. And I want to go on record, I understand

         21  that we have an emergency crisis and I must say that

         22  I accept that. It does not mean that I will not

         23  bring back Commissioner Cohen, there is enough time

         24  to bring him back to get answers.

         25                 I want to know why Dr. Marcos did not
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          2  inform the Committee of plans to house homeless

          3  persons at his HHC facilities at the August 10th

          4  hearing, when we asked him about his plan for HHC.

          5  And let me note, and correct me if I am wrong when

          6  the time comes, while I am dealing with the hearing

          7  that was solely on North Central Bronx, however,

          8  when the reports in the papers, not only was it

          9  North Central, it also mentioned Harlem Hospital, so

         10  it was more than one facility.

         11                 At the hearing he promised good

         12  communication between public officials and with the

         13  community, yet the very next day news that the

         14  homeless was going to be housed at North Central

         15  Bronx surprised all of us.

         16                 Having said that, today's hearing,

         17  and let me note, and maybe perhaps someone can

         18  explain to me, I do not see -- or I see the absence

         19  of Dr. Luis Marcos, and let me also, to keep the

         20  record straight, this hearing, for those who forgot,

         21  didn't all of a sudden suspend from the Heavens. If

         22  I remember correctly, right after the articles that

         23  I was so upset, I personally indicated, because I

         24  was about to go on vacation, that on this day I had

         25  every intention of bringing back HHC and the
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          2  Department of Mental Health to address and discuss

          3  the articles.

          4                 So, I just want to be clear, and I

          5  would be curious to know why Dr. Luis Marcos is not

          6  here today. I also think I explained about

          7  Commissioner Neal Cohen, and I understand that, and

          8  I asked my colleagues to also understand that.  I

          9  must say that I am really honored, although I was

         10  surprised again, but I understand, that while we

         11  were not addressing the issue at the hearing with

         12  North Central, it is always good to see my dear

         13  friend that I worked with very closely, and as a

         14  matter of fact, if people would only remember what

         15  we did, maybe the Department of Health and the

         16  Department of Mental Health will not be in the

         17  dilemma where we have to go through a Charter

         18  Commission to merge the Departments, I remember that

         19  I worked directly with then Commissioner Marty

         20  Oesterreich, who was then the Commissioner of the

         21  Department of Youth Services, and now the Department

         22  of Youth Services and Community Development, but now

         23  I understand because he is the Commissioner of the

         24  Department of Homeless Services, so while I am

         25  surprised and I got caught off guard, I did not get
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          2  a heads up that you were coming, I don't want you to

          3  think, because, one, it is always good to see dear

          4  friends and old friends, and I don't mean in terms

          5  of age, so, I understand why you are sitting there,

          6  sir.

          7                 Having said that, let me also say

          8  that we have been joined by members of the

          9  Committee, and there are hearings going on so they

         10  will come and go, first, the distinguished member

         11  from the distinguished Borough of the Bronx, Council

         12  Member Jose Rivera, who is a member of our

         13  Committee. Of course, my colleague who introduced

         14  the Resolution, while this hearing is really not on

         15  the resolution per se, but it is about the fact that

         16  the resolution calls to get firsthand information

         17  and facts about North Central, she and I both were

         18  caught off guard when all of a sudden the next day

         19  there was this article about moving homeless

         20  families into those two hospitals, the distinguished

         21  colleague also from the Bronx, Council Member June

         22  Eisland.

         23                 Having said that, I don't know who

         24  will lead off, but why don't we then, and of course,

         25  the Counsel to the Committee, Jose Orengo, I see
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          2  both the Senior Vice President for, I think it is

          3  external Corporate Affairs, or there is a title, I

          4  just get lost with the title.

          5                 I am sorry, the Senior Vice President

          6  for Planning and Intergovernmental Relations, Laray

          7  Brown, HHC, and of course I see my colleague,

          8  Commissioner Marty Oesterreich.

          9                 Who is going to lead off?

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Mr.

         11  Councilman, I believe that I will probably lead off.

         12  I have prepared testimony which has been distributed

         13  I hope to every member. I think that that --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am sorry,

         15  Marty?

         16                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I apologize.

         18                 Council Member Eisland, did you have

         19  something to say? I really apologize, I didn't know.

         20  Do you?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: It's okay.

         22  The focus as you have framed it is to discuss the

         23  shock and dismay and I would say the

         24  disingenuousness of the officials at the last

         25  meeting when in fact less than 24 hours after we had
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          2  what I thought was a pretty comprehensive hearing

          3  about NCB, then we hear through the newspapers, not

          4  through any official communicae, that there is about

          5  to be an agreement to house the homeless at NCB.

          6                 I made a statement after that and I

          7  want to make a statement here. It didn't matter to

          8  us whether it was housing the homeless or housing

          9  displaced people from another community or from our

         10  own community, or making an upscale spa out of the

         11  empty rooms there, the concept of usage of the

         12  hospital and the diminution and the transferring of

         13  services to Jacobi has always been the major concern

         14  that we have all had, and if there is in fact enough

         15  space to put a whole new program in there even

         16  temporarily, that needs to be done out in the open,

         17  it needs to be done in discussion with the

         18  community. But it was really a personal affront, I

         19  front, to the chairman and to myself, not to have

         20  even made any mention between when the hearing ended

         21  and the next day and the information appeared in the

         22  newspaper, that was not the time frame in which

         23  these plans were formulated. These plans had to have

         24  been formulated a long time before that.

         25                 And that just continues the pattern
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          2  of not having outreach, not only to the community,

          3  but to the elected officials involved, and the

          4  pattern, frankly, has continued since the last

          5  hearing.

          6                 I called the Public Relations

          7  Department to verify what Joe Orlando had said about

          8  a new psychiatric service that was going to happen

          9  at the hospital, the Department, a high up official

         10  knew nothing about that new service.

         11                 That new service, we were told, was

         12  going to open in September, (a) it hasn't opened,

         13  and (b) we never heard anything further about it. We

         14  have also had no outreach to community relations,

         15  from the person who supposedly is the Chief

         16  Operating Officer of both NCB and Jacobi, and I

         17  don't know where he sits and I don't know him. We

         18  have heard that there is a head of marketing, I have

         19  no idea who heads up marketing, what the

         20  qualifications are, what the criteria for the job is

         21  and what marketing is being done for NCB. So, if I

         22  sound frustrated, I am. I hope I am less frustrated

         23  by the end of this hearing, that would be a welcome

         24  surprise.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also say,
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          2  before you start again, Commissioner, I believe that

          3  we have been joined also by my colleague who came to

          4  me and asked me, and I see him, and I think he is

          5  going to join us, and of course you, Commissioner,

          6  Oesterreich, know he is not a stranger, because he

          7  happens to be the Chair of the Council's Committee

          8  on General Welfare of which I believe you go on a

          9  constant basis, either report, oversight, you name

         10  it. So, I must say, I thank the distinguished

         11  Chairman Steve DiBrienza, the chair of the Committee

         12  on General Welfare.

         13                 I know that he was concerned

         14  especially with what he read, which caught many of

         15  us offguard.

         16                 Now, unless the distinguished

         17  Chairman would want to wait first for the

         18  Commissioner, or wants to say something, I will move

         19  to call the Commissioner.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         21  I wanted to at least hear the opening statement,

         22  step away and then rejoin you.

         23                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, Marty, it

         25  is always good to see you.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: And it is

          3  always a pleasure to appear before so many old

          4  friends.

          5                 I have prepared some testimony which

          6  I have asked to be distributed to all of your

          7  colleagues, Mr. Chairman, which I think outlines in

          8  very great detail the reasoning process and the

          9  overall process by which we came, because I think

         10  there is still in fact an awful lot of

         11  misinformation about our intentions, and I am taking

         12  this opportunity to lay forth our intentions.

         13                 I cannot talk so much about the

         14  process. My colleague is here from HHC, who will

         15  address some of the other issues that you have put

         16  on the table in your opening statement, but do allow

         17  me to read my testimony, because I think it may in

         18  fact delay the majority of the concerns that have

         19  been expressed so far and may allay some of the

         20  misinformation that is out there.

         21                 So, if I may?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: By all means.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The level

         24  of care and services provided by New York City for

         25  homeless families and individuals is unrivaled in
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          2  scope and complexity anywhere in this country, and,

          3  indeed, the world. The existing scope of services

          4  was expanded further this spring when the City

          5  Council and the Administration negotiated the final

          6  details of Local Law 19 of 1999.

          7                 As you know, this law not only

          8  established the Department of Homeless Services as a

          9  permanent agency, but also narrowly prescribed

         10  certain mandated services and set conditions on the

         11  future scope of DHS' services.

         12                 Chief among these conditions were

         13  that overnight stays for families with children at

         14  the Emergency Assistance Unit in the Bronx would no

         15  longer be permitted. The EAU is the central intake

         16  office for homeless families. According to Local Law

         17  19, the EAU must now remain open for the intake of

         18  clients 24 hours a day, seven days a week. Any

         19  families with children still in the application

         20  process at the EAU at 10:00 p.m. must be taken to a

         21  placement overnight. They are also returned to the

         22  EAU the next morning to continue the application

         23  process.

         24                 This agency, under constant scrutiny

         25  by both homeless rights advocates, as well as court
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          2  appointed referees, has made tremendous strides in

          3  complying with not only the letter of the law but

          4  indeed its spirit.

          5                 In order to accomplish the policy

          6  goals clearly enunciated by the legislation, it

          7  became apparent that additional overnight stay

          8  capacity for families being processed at the EAU was

          9  essential.

         10                 While steps were taken and capacity

         11  developed to satisfy the normally anticipated

         12  trends, it was also necessary for prudence sake, to

         13  have overflow capacity available for the times when

         14  unanticipated demand exceeds capacity.

         15                 My decision to locate this

         16  potentially necessary capacity, and I want to

         17  emphasize potentially necessary, in the HHC

         18  facilities discussed is based on geography, space

         19  availability and suitability, security, site control

         20  and timing. Because the facilities are publicly

         21  owned, security and site control are ensured.

         22  Geographically, the facilities are in fact ideal

         23  because they are only 15 minutes away from the EAU.

         24                 In terms of feasibility, the

         25  facilities are also appropriate because they are
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          2  easily convertible for this simple, and I must state

          3  again, still only possible use.

          4                 It is difficult, quite frankly, to

          5  understand why questions should be raised by DHS

          6  using hospitals for homeless families, excluding the

          7  questions about the specific hospitals that have

          8  been raised by the Committee, considering that

          9  hospitals are safe, clean, secure environments for

         10  needy families for one or two nights' stay while

         11  being processed at the EAU. A hospital is clearly

         12  preferable for families who might otherwise be

         13  sleeping on the floor at the EAU.

         14                 In addition, DHS also offers many

         15  services to homeless individuals and families,

         16  including housing readiness and parenting skills,

         17  substance abuse treatment, employment and training

         18  programs, services for the mentally ill, I could go

         19  on for far too long. These programs are designed to

         20  assist homeless people and families to function at

         21  the highest possible level of independence, and to

         22  obtain appropriate housing outside of our shelter

         23  system.

         24                 In order to access these programs and

         25  the services, families must apply at the EAU in the
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          2  application process in order for their eligibility

          3  to be determined.

          4                 And, if families which children are

          5  still in the application process at the EAU at 10:00

          6  p.m., DHS is required by law to provide them with a

          7  placement for the night.

          8                 While the agency, as I stated

          9  earlier, has more than sufficient capacity to

         10  satisfy the normally anticipated need, we believe,

         11  and I have acted on this belief, that we must also

         12  have overflow capacity available.

         13                 I will use hospitals for overnight

         14  stays only if all other acceptable shelter

         15  alternatives for that night available to the City

         16  are exhausted.

         17                 I am more than willing to answer any

         18  particular questions you have about where we are

         19  proceeding on this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me perhaps

         21  deal with the Department of Homeless Services, which

         22  is not in question here, and maybe you perhaps --

         23  let me be clear. The chairman of that Committee that

         24  normally oversees your agency, and he has questions,

         25  it is one thing, but I am a little again baffled,
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          2  where you said it is difficult to understand why

          3  questions should be raised about the Department of

          4  Homeless Services using hospitals. Let me say this:

          5  This Committee does not question you at all, so

          6  let's be clear. What was questioned was there was a

          7  hearing, the day before the alleged implementation.

          8                 Second, this Chair met with HHC to

          9  discuss the issue of the resolution and not only

         10  then and during the hearing, never was it mentioned

         11  that there was a plan to allow the Department of

         12  Homeless Services to use public facilities called

         13  Health and Hospitals Corporation for the purpose of

         14  overnight. So, I want to be clear on that one.

         15                 But let me, because I don't know,

         16  with all due respect, Commissioner, and you are a

         17  friend, and I want you to leave feeling the same

         18  way, but you know me, when I have to bring you back

         19  and put you underneath the hot seat, I will do that

         20  too. See, I don't think you have the obligation

         21  under the structure of the Council to report to me

         22  as the Chairman of the Committee of your plans.

         23                 I do believe, and I don't know, he is

         24  the Chairman, that have been discussed with the

         25  Chairman of that Committee. So, I can't be offended

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  by you. I am not questioning your agency. I do know

          3  your agency's responsibility, I do know laws that we

          4  passed in this Council, so I want to be clear on

          5  that.

          6                 But let me ask you something now

          7  since you raised the question, and then after that I

          8  will allow my colleague to address questions to the

          9  Commissioner of the Department of Homeless Services

         10  on the Department of Homeless Services policies and

         11  direction, not on HHC, okay?

         12                 So, let me ask you some questions as

         13  the Commissioner.

         14                 When these plans were being put into

         15  place, were you aware that you cannot implement them

         16  unless you got a waiver from the State Department of

         17  Health, because you were using a health facility

         18  that certificate of occupancy did not call for

         19  housing homeless families, which is different from

         20  health services?

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, I was

         22  actually not aware of that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine. Okay, I

         24  want to raise the issues for you. Because my concern

         25  here is health issues, and we are the creatures of
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          2  the state, and you know, we are government of the

          3  state too, so our raising the issue today and then

          4  was about, I know, I have been on this Committee now

          5  15 years, I was in the Assembly for six years, I was

          6  in the Health Committee then, I know that in order

          7  to change a hospital, whether HHC or voluntarily,

          8  you have to get a waiver from the state of New York,

          9  of which are you also aware, Commissioner, and I

         10  must say, and I feel so proud because the new

         11  Commissioner of the State Department of Health

         12  happens to be a Puerto Rican woman who was born in

         13  the town that I was born in, called Fajardo, and I

         14  am so glad that she is like me, spunky, that when

         15  the request came in, she rejected it. Are you aware

         16  that that was rejected?

         17                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I have seen

         18  some news reports.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. So, as of

         20  this moment, you have no indication at all where you

         21  could move forward with your plans in an HHC

         22  facility?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I believe,

         24  if I can step back just a second --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Sure. I want to
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          2  stick to the issues of your agency.

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I think

          4  while I am not an expert in hospital regulation, I

          5  would expect that HHC has experts in that particular

          6  regulation. There have been, as I am sure you are

          7  aware, emergency use of hospital facilities, as for

          8  a variety of particular reasons.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: With the consent

         10  of the state.

         11                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: For a

         12  variety of particular reasons.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Absolutely.

         14                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: We are not

         15  talking about turning this into a program policy in

         16  any sense.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Commissioner, let

         18  me be clear, I want to be sure we stick to my best

         19  knowledge.

         20                 For the record, you are correct that

         21  there has been the use of public health, the Health

         22  and Hospitals Corporation facility hospitals, of

         23  which we allowed homeless people to stay overnight,

         24  but that was with the consent of the State

         25  Department of Health. Yes, at Woodhull Hospital,
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          2  where I happen to be privileged to represent, no

          3  doubt during the wintertime when there is a winter

          4  crisis and the temperature goes below a certain

          5  temperature, yes, I will repeat with the approval,

          6  with the consent, with the waiver of the State

          7  Department of Health, yes, HHC facilities has been

          8  used for that purpose on a temporary basis. I agree

          9  with you. It is not the issue here, sir.

         10                 The issue is, in your testimony you

         11  said that you have every intention of using HHC

         12  facilities when you need to do it, and I am not

         13  knocking you for that. I am telling you, sir, to be

         14  clear, you can't do it, HHC can't do it unless the

         15  State Department of Health gives you the waiver.

         16                 So, at this point my question is,

         17  since there has been no decision, what is your plan?

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: What is my

         19  plan to gain approval?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No. What happens

         21  to your plan with North Central and Harlem Hospital,

         22  i.e. if today you need to find a place to put people

         23  overnight, since you do not have the waiver, then I

         24  guess, although this is the wrong hearing and maybe

         25  the Chairman is here, right? The question is, what
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          2  are you going to do then?

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I would bow

          4  to the judgment of the highest local public health

          5  official, who I believe, if I am not mistaken, is

          6  Dr. Marcos. I am sorry, the Commissioner of Health

          7  is the highest local public health Commissioner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, but I want

          9  to know that under the Charter even Commissioner

         10  Neal -- I want to be clear you understand something,

         11  sir. And you are my friend. Even Commissioner Neal

         12  Cohen does not have the right under our Charter,

         13  only he gets that right after the State Commissioner

         14  of the Department of Health gives the City or

         15  municipalities, towns, villages, local Health

         16  Department, the waiver. So I want to be clear on

         17  that one.

         18                 That power does not rest locally.

         19  That power rests with the state, and I want -- I

         20  don't want you to get into trouble now.

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I have no

         22  intention at all of ever getting into trouble.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I want to be sure

         24  I understand. So long as there is no waiver, there

         25  will be no attempt to move homeless families into
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          2  HHC facilities; is that what I am hearing?

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, that is

          4  not what you are hearing at all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, okay. Then

          6  maybe we will see you in court.

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Undoubtedly

          8  so, since I believe there is justification for the

          9  position that I and my colleagues will take.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You know

         11  something, I have been in this business too long to

         12  know that it is not the first time this

         13  Administration is fighting the Albany

         14  administration, all I know is it is going to be

         15  resolved in court. But I just want to be clear for

         16  the record.

         17                 Now, having said that, and you are my

         18  friend.

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Let me just

         20  also say something else. I think the reaction that

         21  the State Health Commissioner had was to a very

         22  preliminary and not very comprehensive letter that

         23  was sent by a very low level staff, from North

         24  Central Bronx. I believe that if we were to put

         25  together, and I am sure we could do that on a
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          2  moment's notice, a more comprehensive, more

          3  factually correct letter, that there might be some

          4  reexamination of this particular issue.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

          6                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I would not

          7  hazard to guess whether we would need to, because as

          8  I have indicated, this is always still a potential

          9  issue.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         11  Commissioner, again, you are a friend and I want to

         12  be clear that you understand my position, and I must

         13  say this, and when I even disagree I am still

         14  reminded, and I ask my colleagues to keep in mind

         15  always that we are the creatures of the State and

         16  when and if HHC, not DHS, but when HHC gets the

         17  waiver from the state, then although I am not happy,

         18  this chair has no choice but to accept it. I must

         19  say to you, and I haven't spoken to the Speaker's

         20  office or anything, but my colleagues are here and

         21  my colleague is there from your own committee, any

         22  attempt to implement this plan by anybody, and I am

         23  serving notice on HHC particularly, without getting

         24  the waiver from the State, I will move to recommend

         25  to the Speaker that we go back into court like we
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          2  did with the privatization of hospitals. And I am

          3  doing this based upon what the law says we can do.

          4  And not that I am against it, and not that I don't

          5  believe that we should, I am just simply saying I

          6  want to be clear for you, sir, because you are a

          7  friend, that decision does not rest with you, does

          8  not rest with HHC, does not rest with the

          9  Administration. That decision ultimately rests with

         10  the Department of Health of the State, giving -- and

         11  the Commissioner, giving the City of New York a

         12  waiver.

         13                 Now, having said that, I only hope

         14  that whatever the plans are, we think about that and

         15  not move forward with it until we get the waiver.

         16  Let me as a courtesy do one or two things.

         17                 One, since it is the Commissioner,

         18  June, I will call on the Chairman of the Committee

         19  on General Welfare, Chairman Steve DiBrienza, and

         20  maybe he wants to address that area.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And then I will

         23  call upon June Eisland.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

         25  to both Mr. Chair, and to my colleague June Eisland.
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          2                 Commissioner, it really goes one step

          3  beyond where the Chairman is, and that is, even

          4  assuming the State was to say it's okay, the use of

          5  hospitals would violate Local Law 19 for overnight

          6  placements because they do not meet the requirements

          7  of the law in terms of the actual facilities, they

          8  are hospital rooms, they are not residential rooms.

          9                 I mean, if you were to, for example,

         10  take over a wing and do some construction and

         11  reconstruction and add independent cooking

         12  facilities and all of the other requirements of law,

         13  perhaps in some -- which I don't think you should

         14  do, put perhaps they might, so beyond that lawsuit,

         15  I dare say that we haven't had a chance to talk

         16  about this and I understand that you are struggling

         17  and do some very good things to approve the

         18  efficiency and efficacy of the agency, and I thought

         19  this plan, I was away during the period of press on

         20  this, I thought this was on the table and off

         21  already. I am only commenting because of your last

         22  statement if I need it I will use them - not only

         23  can you not use them because you don't have the

         24  state permission, but you can't use them because

         25  they violate Local Law 19. They don't meet the
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          2  requirements of the law.

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I would beg

          4  to differ with the esteemed chairman of my oversight

          5  committee.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay. Well,

          7  it's pretty clear.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: There is

          9  particular language which I believe you are making

         10  reference to that I would believe we would have a

         11  differing opinion on.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay, well,

         13  let me save us time, because it is the Health

         14  Committee.

         15                 Not only will the Health Committee

         16  move to end up in court, because this Administration

         17  doesn't cooperate in any way, shape or form on the

         18  state issue, but no doubt the advocates will end up

         19  in court because the law is as clear as can be. I

         20  wrote the law. I negotiated every inch of that law.

         21  The law is as clear as can be. They have to comply

         22  with the applicable laws, rules and statutes which

         23  include a definition of what the dwelling unit must

         24  be.

         25                 So, I don't want to take up any more
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          2  time, not only do you have an opinion that maybe you

          3  can do it without state permission, but if you have

          4  an opinion that you can do it and not violate the

          5  law, then you will have two lawsuits. But that begs

          6  the question.

          7                 The real question ultimately for our

          8  Committee and our struggle, yours and mine, and I

          9  want to say together as the Chairman does, because

         10  we have tried to create a better, build on a good

         11  relationship, is why are we in the predicament that

         12  you have this much of an emergency surge? And I

         13  submit to you, unless you can share with this chair

         14  something different than I know, it is because you

         15  have less permanent housing on the back end than

         16  ever before so people are not out, the middle of the

         17  system, the transitional Tier IIs are bulked up, and

         18  you are slowing down entry at the front end which is

         19  why you are backing up.

         20                 That is not your fault, but if you

         21  are not given enough Section 8s, if you are not

         22  given enough housing authority units, if there is

         23  not enough construction of low-income housing you

         24  can't do anything without the product, but that is

         25  why we are in this condition. So, the answer is in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  figuring out how to beat the state and avoid the

          3  law, twist the law to get into a hospital room, the

          4  answer is we have to move a few more people out of

          5  the back end.

          6                 Aren't the numbers lower than ever?

          7  The answer I think is yes.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The numbers

          9  vary. And the issue really is for us to be in full

         10  compliance with Local Law 19 for the overnight

         11  stays. We need some additional overnight capacity.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Yes.

         13                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I would say

         14  to you that we have been successful. We have been

         15  successful to this point, since July 1, we started

         16  formally on July 12th, we have been successful to

         17  this point.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Yes, I

         19  agree.

         20                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: And we

         21  have, you know, my staff has done a Yeoman's job in

         22  addressing all of the particular concerns outlined

         23  by you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I agree.

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: But there
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          2  are particular issues that need to be addressed on a

          3  short-term temporary basis. This is a potential

          4  solution, and I want to stress that. This is a

          5  potential solution.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Yes, but

          7  you see that's the problem, we don't believe that it

          8  is a potential solution.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: May I do this,

         10  with all due respect, because I am trying to -- and

         11  I think this issue, I guess the question I have to

         12  both the Commissioner and maybe the chair of the

         13  Committee is the following: I think this issue

         14  appropriately should be discussed and handled in his

         15  Committee.

         16                 The hearing I am having today has

         17  nothing to do with -- that is why I was a little

         18  confused on your plan, or what you believe is the

         19  best way to do it. My hearing is because that agency

         20  that should have given me the courtesy as the

         21  Chairman of the Health Committee, enlightened me

         22  that there was a plan, oh by the way, by the

         23  Department of Homeless Services to use HHC

         24  facilities for temporary accommodation of homeless

         25  families.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: You are

          3  right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, I suggest,

          5  because I am a little baffled to know, one,

          6  Commissioner, and that you will be with him when the

          7  time comes, but if you reached out to the chair of

          8  that Committee, which is why I am having this

          9  hearing of HHC, and he was informed, then I can't

         10  get upset, and I am not upset with you. I am upset

         11  with the Health and Hospitals Corporation, because

         12  the issue of one of the two hospitals you

         13  identified, the issue at hand was North Central, and

         14  by the way, I see Council Member Phil Reed who is a

         15  member of our Committee and he is going back and

         16  forth because there are two meetings, and I saw

         17  Council Member Chris Quinn, and I also saw Council

         18  Member Pedro Espada, and I believe that there are

         19  several meetings going on, but I want to be clear

         20  where I am coming from. I met with them prior to our

         21  hearing on the resolution so that I can be brought

         22  up to firsthand, because I heard from my colleagues

         23  from the Bronx, and particularly Council Member

         24  Eisland, but I brought in not only HHC but the

         25  senior vice president of the network to hear their
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          2  side, and I also made recommendations and during the

          3  whole hearing nobody ever mentioned that there was a

          4  plan in place to use not North Central but also

          5  Harlem Hospital.

          6                 Is that still correct, that you are

          7  talking about North Central and Harlem Hospital?

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: In fact we

         11  have made ready both facilities. We have not

         12  implemented --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, I understand

         14  that but I want to be clear as to where I am coming

         15  from; and that is, the argument about -- see, I

         16  can't hold you accountable, because you don't report

         17  to my Committee, but HHC does.

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: But perhaps

         19  I can provide some explanation as to time frame,

         20  because --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, I really

         22  would not like you to and let me tell you why. Let

         23  me be clear. I do not want to step on the feet of my

         24  distinguished colleague, the Chair of the Committee

         25  on General Welfare.
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          2                 The Department of Homeless Services,

          3  although I am concerned and interested and will

          4  always be involved, and I supported that bill, I

          5  guess because I am a senior member, I am a seasoned

          6  member, and it took a long time before I got some

          7  titles, I always will give the respect to my

          8  colleagues so that if it is land use issues I will

          9  always defer to June Eisland, if it is federal and

         10  state legislation I will refer to Jose Rivera. In

         11  this case, honestly, I suggest that this issue be

         12  brought up by that Committee that has oversight

         13  jurisdiction. I wanted to give you the opportunity

         14  to be heard, but I don't think, while it may be your

         15  idea, while it may be your agency as the lead

         16  agency, what is at question here is not -- you don't

         17  have the right to do that. HHC doesn't have the

         18  right to do that, unless they get a waiver from the

         19  state. The waiver coming down doesn't come to you,

         20  it comes to HHC. Because HHC is the holder of the

         21  certificate of occupancy of the 11 acute care

         22  facilities under the Corporation. Do you follow my

         23  scenario?

         24                 So, I am not being disrespectful --

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, and I
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          2  appreciate that. I was attempting to provide a

          3  little bit of a background and a possible

          4  explanation but I believe Laray can do that for us.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine.

          6                 Steve?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I would

          8  agree, and I will refer back to the chair, let me

          9  sum it up in ten seconds by the following:

         10                 I believe and understand the point

         11  made by the Chairman, that to getting the merits or

         12  lack thereof of the decision, you can't do it

         13  without this state waiver, and that is his concern,

         14  it is the Health Department, it is health issues, it

         15  is HHC and they are going to have to answer why they

         16  would even allegedly do it without and so on.

         17                 I just want the Committee to be aware

         18  that we will pursue it in our hearing, we will

         19  schedule a hearing to pursue the second issue, which

         20  is even if they were to entertain and give you this

         21  waiver, it is my position that using those hospital

         22  rooms violates Local Law 19, apparently you have

         23  indicated your position is it would not, so if you

         24  get over that hurdle, I am just telling you, you are

         25  going to get over one, if you could, into the second
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          2  hurdle, which is even with permission, which you

          3  don't have, the chairman has made that clear, and

          4  you can't do it without, even with permission, they

          5  don't, in my humble opinion they don't meet the

          6  requirements of Local Law 19, and I believe that

          7  will be the position of the Committee, I believe

          8  that will be the position of the advocates, I

          9  believe they will sue you over it, if they ever get

         10  permission, and I believe they will win. But because

         11  you have been doing a good job and we have been

         12  doing a good job at trying to work together, I would

         13  rather end on the same note the Chairman ends on,

         14  which is think about how together we will never get

         15  to the point of needing, of getting those answers,

         16  you know, getting the permission or not and the

         17  violating of the law or not because we will continue

         18  to do better in terms of the overall system and you

         19  will never have the crisis you anticipate. That is

         20  my hope.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I share

         23  that hope, Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, again, in

         25  fairness to my colleagues, Council Member June
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          2  Eisland would like to ask questions of you. And I

          3  repeat, it is going to be geared towards you as the

          4  Commissioner of the Department of Homeless Services.

          5                 Again, believe me, I am happy to have

          6  you with me, you are a friend, but my hearing is not

          7  about DHS, my hearing is about HHC, of whose

          8  facilities will be used by, by the way, DHS.

          9                 So, I want to be clear, and I ask my

         10  colleagues to stay within that.

         11                 Again, I want to move on to HHC to

         12  really deal with the question why I summons them

         13  back to the Committee, which is really the offshoot

         14  of the August 10th hearing, okay?

         15                 Council Member Eisland.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         17  very much, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 I just want to dovetail somewhat with

         19  what my colleague Council Member DiBrienza was

         20  pursuing but perhaps from a slightly different

         21  perspective, and that is the actual physical

         22  facility that you propose to use, not only in how it

         23  would or wouldn't comply with Local Law 19, but I

         24  guess my perspective is from a parochial point of

         25  view because I have the unique and precious
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          2  responsibility of knowing what is going to happen at

          3  NCB. In case anybody can't tell, I am a proponent of

          4  the City Hospital and want it to remain and want to

          5  nurture it so that it continues to give service to

          6  the people that are vulnerable in the community that

          7  need this kind of facility, particularly for the

          8  immigrant population, the uninsured, the Medicaid

          9  population, and my concern is when you say, and I

         10  think you use the expression you would be using this

         11  facility under an emergency condition; is that

         12  correct?

         13                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes, that

         14  is what this has been predicated on.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Do you or

         16  would you with or without, and we won't go back and

         17  forth about whether you believe that you need the

         18  waiver or not, would you need to make physical or

         19  structural changes to the areas that you would be

         20  using for the homeless?

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No. The

         22  only changes that have already been accomplished by

         23  the way, is that we have put locks on individual

         24  doors in order to be compliant with some aspects of

         25  the administrative code, as referred to earlier, and
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          2  we have substituted, I believe furniture. We have

          3  put some cribs in and some other furniture.

          4                 In essence, what we are talking about

          5  here is half a ward a North Central Bronx, maybe it

          6  is less. Fourteen units.

          7                 MS. BROWN: Twelve units.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It is up to

          9  12 units, approximately 12 to 15 units, which is

         10  half a floor, segregated somewhat from the main body

         11  of the -- and then at Harlem Hospital it is 12 to 16

         12  units, again half a floor, at Harlem Hospital. In

         13  either case, if you look at total occupancy that we

         14  will be proposing will be somewhere near 40 somewhat

         15  individuals. Don't hold me to this exact number, but

         16  it will be 40 somewhat individuals on an individual

         17  overnight basis at North Central Bronx, and

         18  approximately 64 individuals, maximum capacity

         19  again, at Harlem Hospital.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, what I

         21  find even more incredible now is that work, even

         22  though the way you describe it in the greater

         23  context could be construed as not changing the

         24  footprints of the rooms, as you said there are locks

         25  and you have substituted furniture and added
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          2  furniture, that this work has been done, again,

          3  without any disclosure, without any discussion with

          4  anybody.  And what is even more incredible is that I

          5  anticipated that something like this might be going

          6  on and when I called over to NCB last week and asked

          7  what structural changes or what changes needed to be

          8  made, I was assured that don't worry, a lot of work

          9  had to be done and that work had not been

         10  accomplished yet, so that even in an emergency

         11  condition people could not be moved in. That is what

         12  I was told by the hospital.

         13                 Ms. Brown, we haven't met before, but

         14  I am not hard of hearing, I know what I hear, I know

         15  what I don't hear, and that is what I was told.

         16                 Now, this kind of blurs the line, Mr.

         17  Chairman, between discussing with Homeless Services

         18  what their plans are and my mission to keep NCB as a

         19  public hospital, but that only sends red flags up to

         20  me that this is like the preliminary or forerunner

         21  to decertifying beds in that hospital. And that

         22  really makes me crazy.

         23                 Is there any other work that you are

         24  contemplating doing now?

         25                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Absolutely
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          2  not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: One thing, I want

          4  to make sure that we keep the record straight

          5  because some of us on this end and in this Committee

          6  work hard and I want my colleagues who perhaps may

          7  not be members to be clear.

          8                 Even when it comes to these

          9  certifying beds, the only one who can actually allow

         10  the decertification of beds is the State Department

         11  of Health and its commissioner. There has been

         12  decertifications of beds that took place already,

         13  and every Council member whose district was affected

         14  was notified, and if I remember correctly, in order

         15  to decertify beds that are not being used, HHC

         16  attached some kind of what I call a sweetener, where

         17  some of my beds decertified at WoodHull, we were

         18  reimburses in terms of dollars and cents to be used

         19  somewhere else, if I remember correctly.

         20                 But I want to be clear. HHC cannot,

         21  or DHS cannot decertify beds without the approval of

         22  the Commissioner of the State Department of Health.

         23  I just want to be clear.

         24                 Go ahead.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I think that
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          2  is perfectly clear. I have asked is there more

          3  physical work that has to be done or are you now at

          4  the go stage where you can and expect that you will

          5  be moving people into NCB for other care other than

          6  the normal care that the hospital is supposed to

          7  dispense?

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The

          9  physical renovations or changes to the footprint, et

         10  cetera, there are none other than what I have

         11  described, which is in essence a clean-up, paint up,

         12  spruce up of particular problems that were in each

         13  one of those facilities. That is what has been done

         14  on the two half floors that we had contemplated.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Okay. So,

         16  there was a clean up, a spruce up, a change of

         17  locks, an adding of cribs and other furniture, that

         18  is what I am hearing?

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Right. And

         20  also the addition of locks, as I said earlier.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I think I

         22  said that at the beginning.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Right.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: And is there

         25  a price tag on that that you will share with us?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Oh,

          3  absolutely. I can certainly share that with my

          4  Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, I want to

          6  be clear to my colleagues, with all due respect. I

          7  suggest, and I am ready to deal with it on the

          8  Health Committee, but since it is DHS, that maybe

          9  this issue should be as an oversight, because it is

         10  not only North Central, it is also Harlem and I

         11  don't know what else it is going to be. All I am

         12  saying is, in all fairness, the issue today was

         13  about HHC coming before us and saying that there

         14  would be no changes, no phasing down, no closing of

         15  North Central, and the next day we get a plan to be

         16  implemented about North Central.

         17                 Any renovation, any altering, I

         18  suggest we start dealing with that, and I say to my

         19  colleague, the Chairman of the Committee on General

         20  Welfare, I am prepared to hold a joint hearing so

         21  that we have both agencies before both appropriate

         22  committees to address the issue which is being

         23  raised here, which is more about implementation and

         24  policy, rather than HHC coming before us saying we

         25  are not changing nothing and the next day we read
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          2  about already moving forward to change, not only was

          3  it north central, but Harlem Hospital also, okay?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: With your

          5  indulgence, Mr. Chair, I can just continue for a

          6  short time longer. As I said, I do have the perhaps

          7  parochial attitude, but I do have these two

          8  forthcoming officials sitting in front of me now and

          9  this physical facility is in my district, and I am

         10  just trying to kind of nail down as best I can,

         11  since I didn't know to ask these questions at the

         12  last hearing because I didn't know the proposal was

         13  on the table. I just feel that the good people of

         14  the North Bronx just need to know what the next

         15  steps are.

         16                 What was the price tag for the

         17  renovation?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I also want

         19  you to add, because, again, I am perfectly willing

         20  to have you ask the question, but as a Chairman with

         21  this Committee, I also then have to take the good

         22  people of Harlem and Central Harlem that also

         23  similarly will be affected.

         24                 What I really need to know and get a

         25  handle is, besides North Central, is similarly
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          2  whatever she asks about North Central, than I want

          3  to know also about North Central and Harlem, because

          4  I have a responsibility as the Chairman of the

          5  Health Committee so that anyone who is affected get

          6  firsthand information.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: You didn't

          8  think you were getting an argument from me on that,

          9  did you, Mr. Chair?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you.

         12                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: If I may be

         13  allowed to respond?

         14                 The costs are all to be minimal. We

         15  will certainly lay them out for both chairpeople, I

         16  believe, and we will supply that. But they were

         17  ultimately minimal, which points to two -- but there

         18  were some costs associated which points up two

         19  particular facts.

         20                 The first is that we were able to do

         21  this very, very quickly, using our in-house staff.

         22                 The second is that the facilities

         23  both were empty and had deteriorated to some point

         24  where we had to fix them up again for overnight

         25  stays.
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          2                 That I believe is some salient

          3  information that you are to be aware of.

          4                 I should also point out that there

          5  was an earlier question asked and I was directed by

          6  the Chairman not to answer, however, the Vice

          7  President of the Health and Hospitals Corporation

          8  does have some information on that particular matter

          9  and that deals with the timing of this entire

         10  situation.

         11                 MS. BROWN: My name is Laray Brown and

         12  I am a Senior Vice President for Corporate Planning,

         13  Intergovernmental Relations and Community Health

         14  Services and I am here on behalf of Dr. Luis Marcos,

         15  from the New York City Health and Hospitals

         16  Corporation, and thank you for inviting us back to

         17  clarify some of the issues and response to some of

         18  your specific questions.

         19                 I first would like to start off with,

         20  it was our understanding, and perhaps not a complete

         21  or adequate understanding, but the hearing that

         22  occurred on August 10th was specifically focused on

         23  the closure of NCB, and as you said, honorable

         24  Councilwoman, future plans for NCB.

         25                 While we did not believe that a
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          2  proposal, which was not a plan, that a proposal that

          3  was under discussion with regard to the temporary,

          4  and from our vantage point, very short term and

          5  emergency basis use of NCB in particular, since that

          6  was the focus of the hearing, we did not believe

          7  that that would be an important aspect of our

          8  presentation about our long-term plan for NCB -- let

          9  me just finish.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am getting old,

         11  and I want to make sure, because really, I have got

         12  a lot of questions for you and I have been trying to

         13  stick to the role of the Department of Homeless

         14  Services.

         15                 But let me say this to you, and

         16  please don't do this to me. Let me say this: If

         17  Commissioner Oesterreich was not aware of it, as a

         18  Corporation you have legal people, you have lawyers,

         19  don't you?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Oh, absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That oversee and

         22  protect the Corporation's interest legally, correct?

         23                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is it fair to say

         25  that the Corporation knows that they are a creature
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          2  of the state?

          3                 MS. BROWN: It is fair to say --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. And is it

          5  fair to say -- go ahead.

          6                 MS. BROWN: It is fair to say that we

          7  know and we appreciate that the Department of Health

          8  has regulatory oversight of the use of our space.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes.

         10                 MS. BROWN: And in the discussions,

         11  the initial discussions when the inquiry came from

         12  our sister agency to help them out for space,

         13  available space, for somewhere in Northern Manhattan

         14  and Northern Bronx, I believe that the staff, at the

         15  staff level, our counsel did apprise DHS and others

         16  who were involved in that discussion that we did

         17  have this obligation to inform the State Department

         18  of Health.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And that you

         20  could not move forward on any implementation of any

         21  plan unless you got a waiver; is that fair to say?

         22                 MS. BROWN: Well, it is not --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is it, yes or no?

         24                 MS. BROWN: No, it is not fair to say.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why is it not?
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          2                 MS. BROWN: Because in fact it is not

          3  a waiver that is required. Essentially it is my

          4  understanding and the understanding of the staff who

          5  are experts at this, is that because of the State

          6  Department of Health's regulatory responsibility

          7  with regard to space, what we are supposed to do is

          8  to notify them of the potential use of our space for

          9  emergency situations, which is what we have done.

         10  And that that decision, the approval of those

         11  individual requests to the Department of Health,

         12  would come from them based on the individual

         13  circumstance. So there is not a formal waiver

         14  process.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But the point is,

         16  are you changing your Article 28 certificate of

         17  occupancy?

         18                 MS. BROWN: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You are not?

         20                 MS. BROWN: No, because in fact --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Maybe I am wrong.

         22                 MS. BROWN: May I finish, please, sir?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You mean to tell

         24  me you can bring in a component which has nothing to

         25  do with hospitals, and change it, even though -- and
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          2  mind it, I am trying to stay away from emergency --

          3  change the structure and say that you don't need the

          4  approval of the State?

          5                 MS. BROWN: That is not what I am

          6  saying.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Then I am lost.

          8                 MS. BROWN: Okay. That is not what I

          9  am saying. And it is very important that the issue

         10  of emergency or urgent nature of the request is an

         11  important aspect of the consideration that the State

         12  Department of Health would make. It is our

         13  obligation, it was our obligation and continues to

         14  be our obligation to inform the state as to any use

         15  of our space. When we make a request of the state to

         16  review potential use, we have to tell them for how

         17  long that potential use is going to be, what the

         18  implications are for our service delivery or

         19  operation, what formal agreements that would

         20  transpire after they were to give the approval, and

         21  frankly, the considerations are therefore made based

         22  on all of those facts.

         23                 As the Commissioner said, what we

         24  gave the Department of Health, degree of facts, the

         25  State Commissioner made statements as to her opinion
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          2  as to the use of NCB, but in fact because this has

          3  been a proposal under discussions, we have no

          4  formalized agreement yet, all the information has

          5  not been laid out to the State Department of Health,

          6  and, therefore, they don't have all of the

          7  information to complete their review.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: My question to

          9  you is, can you implement a plan without getting the

         10  approval of the State Department of Health, forget

         11  about emergency, even if it is emergency, can you

         12  still move forward and implement -- see, here is my

         13  dilemma.  I had a hearing, the next day I read more

         14  about what was going to happen in North Central and

         15  Harlem and then say, oh, by the way, I am waiting

         16  upon the state it said, as of Friday, this weekend,

         17  we are going to move in the families. My question

         18  is, can you do that without getting the approval of

         19  the state? And maybe I need lawyers to answer that.

         20                 You can't have it both ways. You

         21  can't be on an Article 28, which clearly defines how

         22  and when you function, and then alter what you want.

         23  And it has nothing to do with you, so please -- I am

         24  not a lawyer, I am just a simple guy from Brooklyn,

         25  that happens to be the Chairman of this Committee. I
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          2  need you to help me, but you are not a lawyer

          3  either.

          4                 MS. BROWN: Absolutely not.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I am telling

          6  you that my lawyers, our lawyers, are saying to me

          7  and to us, that to change the infrastructure of a

          8  health facility you need -- I don't even want to

          9  call it a waiver anymore, whatever the name is, you

         10  cannot do it unless the state signs off.

         11                 Let me use the word signing off. And

         12  I am telling you, whether right or wrong, whether

         13  she has all the facts or not, thank God you are from

         14  Fajardo Puerto Rico, the Commissioner of the State

         15  Department of Health has already went on record in

         16  the press saying, well, we are not against it -- let

         17  me be clear, she didn't say I am against it.

         18                 MS. BROWN: That's right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: She said you

         20  can't do it until I get all the facts.

         21                 MS. BROWN: That's right. And we would

         22  agree that that is the case, but we would also say

         23  to you that because of the emergency -- what we

         24  understood this to bed was a request for a very

         25  short term, temporary use of empty space, not space
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          2  that needed to be recertified or beds that needed to

          3  be decertified, but empty, unused, non-clinical

          4  space, that we were within the realm of our

          5  authority to begin those discussions with the sister

          6  agency who needed this emergency assistance. And if

          7  I may finish, and we were proceeding with the

          8  process in informing the State Department of Health.

          9                 Now, if because we have an emergency

         10  situation, and we need to act on the proposal before

         11  the state were to approve it, there would be

         12  ramifications.

         13                 The state could choose, I just want

         14  to give you all of the information, the state could

         15  choose to sanction us, they could choose to survey

         16  us and those are the implications.

         17                 We don't want to do anything that

         18  would risk our reimbursement and our relationship

         19  with the state, and that is the very reason why we

         20  are in communication with the State Department of

         21  Health, but wherein that very same commissioner has

         22  called Dr. Marcos and in fact had worked with her

         23  colleague at the state level with regard to homeless

         24  services and committing to working with DHS in

         25  finding alternatives to help them with their
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          2  emergency situation.

          3                 But our position has been, we have

          4  empty space, it is not compromising the services

          5  that we provide, it will not get in the way of

          6  future use and expansion of health programs at

          7  either NCB or Harlem Hospital, and if we need to

          8  help out on an emergency situation, we will.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: With all due

         10  respect, I guess maybe something -- I must be

         11  getting old in this business. I have not said I am

         12  opposing what you have said. Listen to what I am

         13  saying. I just want to get clear in my mind. I have

         14  a conflict between my very close distinguished

         15  friend, the Commissioner of the Department of

         16  Homeless Services, that in his testimony leads me to

         17  believe that whether there is an emergency,

         18  regardless he is moving in. That is what he said.

         19  And I have lawyers telling me, like privatization,

         20  which I believe we resolved it, it took us four

         21  years, but we did. There was a difference of

         22  opinion, and like a priest, like politicians, you

         23  get ten lawyers in one room, you get ten different

         24  opinions, you get ten politicians, you get different

         25  opinions. I am not against you.
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          2                 I want to be clear. Whether it is a

          3  signature, whether if you give me all the

          4  documentation, the question is very simple, does the

          5  State have to say, yes, you could move forward? Or

          6  can they say no, you cannot move forward?

          7                 MS. BROWN: The State can say yes and

          8  they can say no.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If the State says

         10  no, and you attempt -- I don't mean you, because now

         11  it changes from HHC to DHS -- and that agency now

         12  chooses to move forward, what are the regulations

         13  that the State Department of Health on the State

         14  Constitution can impose against not only the City of

         15  New York but HHC?

         16                 MS. BROWN: The State could do the

         17  following: They could choose to come out to do a

         18  survey to confirm for themselves whether the

         19  operation of -- and this could be for this use or

         20  any other use -- whether the use that we proceeded

         21  with is in any way contrary or compromising primary

         22  focus. And if they were to determine that it was

         23  compromising, and they might determine that it is

         24  not, they then could sanction us in the following

         25  ways:
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead, like

          3  what?

          4                 MS. BROWN: They could fine us.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Give me dollars

          6  and cents now. Now you are getting to the straight

          7  talk, I love that. How much can you be fined?

          8                 MS. BROWN: I frankly can't tell you

          9  that because they have a range. Or --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What is the

         11  range?

         12                 MS. BROWN: I can't tell you that. Can

         13  I finish?

         14                 They could decide that they want us

         15  to sit down with them and restructure our hospital

         16  rate, our reimbursement rate, because they would

         17  say, let me say hypothetically --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Reimbursement to

         19  HHC for operating?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Right. But let me go on

         21  with that one, because that is a real one because

         22  the square footage of our hospitals is built into

         23  our reimbursement structure. So, they could say, if

         24  you are using 10,000 square feet for this use, then

         25  we are going to take that out of the equation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Does the federal

          3  government also come in like --

          4                 MS. BROWN: The State --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Wait. I want to

          6  make sure I follow the scenario of sanctions.

          7                 At Harlem Hospital the state came in

          8  and did a survey and they found that in the

          9  emergency room, people were being routed to another

         10  building because it wasn't by the emergency room

         11  they could have lost their -- I think it was

         12  Medicaid.

         13                 MS. BROWN: Their participation in the

         14  Medicaid Medicare program.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Can that happen

         16  at these facilities, if the federal government

         17  chooses. Folks, this is about politics, okay? This

         18  is election year, not this year, next year, it

         19  started already. I mean, I can't believe the people

         20  of the Bronx and Harlem and their politicians and I

         21  go to my Congress person and she goes crazy, any

         22  right animal in politics is going to now start

         23  calling the Secretary of Health and Human Services,

         24  so can the federal government also step in?

         25                 MS. BROWN: The state, in New York
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          2  State, the State Department of Health has been

          3  deemed the authority on behalf of both the State and

          4  HCFA.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So in losing, we

          6  could lose, and I am not saying we are going to, I

          7  just want to be clear that everybody understands

          8  what is it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Mr. Chair, you

         10  made reference to politicians from the Bronx --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, I did not. I

         12  said politics in general. I said the Bronx and

         13  Harlem because we are discussing two hospitals that

         14  may be losing, that may, may, I didn't say shall, I

         15  said may, depending upon the survey stepping in,

         16  that I want to be clear, it is not just fining them,

         17  but there are other things that could hurt the

         18  institution, that is what I was referring to.

         19                 MS. BROWN: But inasmuch as we have

         20  counsel and the Corporation has been providing

         21  services for a very long time, we don't believe that

         22  there would be that trajectory. Because, and I keep

         23  having to emphasize, this request is being made on

         24  behalf of a sister agency who had a temporary urging

         25  request to use the space only as a back-up, and in
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          2  NCB's case a back-up to a back-up. So, the potential

          3  implications from our vantage point are almost moot.

          4  And that was the very reason why we --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Wait. Listen.

          7                 MS. BROWN:-- We did not believe that

          8  this was an issue that was going to impinge upon the

          9  future of NCB, because the discussions were for only

         10  for the use of this space until the end of

         11  September, temporary use, just in case.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say this

         13  and then I will call Council Member Rivera. But let

         14  me just say this: I want to be clear for my

         15  colleagues who are members of this Committee and

         16  members who are not. I think the key work here, and

         17  that is why it is important for us to follow through

         18  both again this Committee and General Welfare, is

         19  the word "emergency". That puts the whole category

         20  in a different environment.

         21                 But I also know that even when people

         22  use the word emergency, and I have gone back to what

         23  you questioned me about the Bronx politicians, since

         24  I am only using, since it was in Brooklyn and

         25  WoodHull Hospital, then it would be Nydia Velasquez
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          2  and Ed Townes and whatever it is, even when someone

          3  uses the word emergency and people go along with it

          4  temporarily, if enough political clout that comes

          5  from the masses of the constituency we represent,

          6  then I have seen emergencies come and go so quick

          7  that I don't have to sneeze. That was my point.

          8                 So the key that I was trying to say,

          9  that in this case the word is emergency. I am

         10  looking at not only the now but the tomorrow. So I

         11  just wanted to be clear.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Mr.

         13  Chairman, may I make just a closing comment, which

         14  may help?

         15                 Number one, I will take up your

         16  suggestion of a hearing on this topic and if we can

         17  schedule it jointly I am always willing.

         18                 Number two, in terms of where June

         19  was going which crosses the lines of your

         20  Committee's main thrust, the information I want to

         21  give you is that I believe, advocates believe, the

         22  Committee, folks who drafted the law believe that

         23  they would have to cooking facilities within each

         24  room, it would have to meet all of the definitions

         25  and requirements that shelter has to require, I
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          2  think it is absolutely crystal clear the legislative

          3  intent is there, the legal language is there and so

          4  that even if they overcome this hurdle there will be

          5  the second level lawsuit, which is that even with

          6  permission of the state, assuming that ever happens,

          7  these are not, they don't meet the requirements of

          8  the law, in other words of this local law 19, point

          9  two.

         10                 And point three, ultimately whether

         11  it is North Central Bronx or Harlem Hospital, our

         12  Committee is very concerned with the notion and the

         13  question the Commissioner raised, why are people

         14  getting upset, why are we standing on

         15  technicalities, oh, so the state will eventually

         16  give us permission, oh, the rooms will be fine, why

         17  is it a bad thing to put homeless families in

         18  hospitals, because these are hospitals, these are

         19  physical, medical institutions, these are not

         20  anything like the home-like environment we are

         21  trying to create for people as they go through the

         22  continuum. So, I think there will even be those who

         23  substantively argue with, from the adequacy point of

         24  view, all of which you are right, shifts from your

         25  important critical oversight that they don't tell
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          2  you and then they want to do things without the

          3  right permission to our issues of the law and the

          4  substance, and I believe the Committee will do, I

          5  can't speak for every member, but I believe we will

          6  do everything we can to assist those who oppose the

          7  use of North Central Bronx and Harlem Hospital for

          8  this purpose, particularly since the emergency, the

          9  temporary nature of this need is self-inflicted by

         10  an administration that refuses to give this

         11  Commissioner enough of the resources to get people

         12  out of the back end of the system.

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also,

         15  before I call upon Council Member Rivera,

         16  acknowledge that we have been joined by another

         17  distinguished colleague who represents the Borough

         18  of the Bronx along with his colleagues, Council

         19  Member Adolpho Carrion.

         20                 Council Member Rivera.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Just very

         22  quickly, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         23                 Whether you call a short-term

         24  emergency, other people are concerned in our

         25  community, they might call it dumping grounds.
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          2  Earlier in your statement, Mr. Chairman, we were

          3  hoping that we will have the Commissioner here, but

          4  obviously the Commissioner will not be here and I

          5  will say that is very shocking --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now which

          7  Commissioner are you referring to, sir?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Commissioner

          9  Marcos.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Oh, okay.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: And she has

         12  chosen to sort of speak on his behalf. I just want

         13  to share that it is very shocking to hear that there

         14  seems to be a lack of communication between one

         15  agency within this administration and the other, and

         16  that based on rumors, this is for HHC, and that

         17  based on rumors, HHC took away the mental health

         18  contract away from NCB, I don't know if that was

         19  asked, the question along those lines, but I am

         20  going by what I believe is the concern of this

         21  Committee, and I am going by what I am reading here

         22  which seems to be part of a report from this

         23  Committee. Unless I am reading wrong, unless this is

         24  another Committee --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You are correct.
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          2  The only problem with that issue is, and I want to

          3  get back to --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: But I do want

          5  to get back, Mr. Chairman, I have been waiting very

          6  patiently over here for this exchange back and

          7  forth, which is a healthy and welcome one, and if

          8  you allow me, sir, to just, as I stated, I will be

          9  as brief as possible, because I want to ask, when I

         10  hear about temporarily short-term emergency, one of

         11  my questions is, do we still use the armories of the

         12  City of New York to provide emergency shelters? And

         13  if we do, then why are we using the hospitals?

         14                 That is a quick question, but that is

         15  another question I would like to ask the homeless,

         16  Department of Homeless. But you can answer that one,

         17  if you want to.

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes,

         19  Council Member, we still use the armories, we will

         20  continue to use the armories. The second issue, why

         21  do we need to use these two particular hospitals

         22  that we are discussing today, is very simply because

         23  under the constraints of Local Law 19 we were

         24  supposed to go to a 7/24 operation, seven days a

         25  week, 24 hours a day, and to then transport anybody
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          2  who was still in place at the EAU at 10:00 --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: So, both of

          4  these hospitals will only be used for an overnight

          5  stay.

          6                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: It is not

          8  going to turn into --

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, Council

         10  Member. That is not our intention. It has never been

         11  our intention.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: All right.

         13                 Just for my information, I don't want

         14  to stray away from the subject. Do you still provide

         15  services for Camp LaGuardia, or did you ever provide

         16  services for Camp LaGuardia, upstate New York, 65

         17  miles away?

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes. That

         19  is a City facility that has been privatized.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: What part was

         21  privatized?

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The entire

         23  operation of the camp, other than the security

         24  operation. I maintain control of the security.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: How many
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          2  people are warehoused up there?

          3                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The camp

          4  has a capacity of 1,016 --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Do they have

          6  1,000 or do they just have a capacity?

          7                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, it has

          8  a capacity of 1,000. They presently have a little

          9  more than 700 individuals who are presently in the

         10  camp.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Could you

         12  describe to me, you have less than 1,000 people up

         13  there, what period, how long is the stay up there? I

         14  mean, this is 65 miles away from the City of New

         15  York.

         16                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: That would

         17  depend on the particular program that they are

         18  enrolled in. One of the major changes --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I need to

         20  know, what kind of services do you provide them?

         21                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Oh, I

         22  provide some drug education programs. In the

         23  present, though, it is primarily a general program

         24  shelter, and that is one of the things that we are

         25  committed to changing with the new privatized
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          2  contract that we have going in there. We will have

          3  greater emphasis on a number of programs for the

          4  mentally ill, for substance abusers and some other

          5  issues that people will need to address in order to

          6  get them out of the cycle of homelessness.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Are these

          8  people able to mingle with their population or go

          9  out of the area where they are at?

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: According

         11  to the population up there they mingle all too well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And many

         13  complaints from the community, too.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: That is the

         15  point that I am making, Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But, again, I

         17  want to bring back to this hearing, which is not

         18  General Welfare which oversees this agency.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Precisely, Mr.

         20  Chairman.

         21                 What did you just say, Mr. Chairman?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I said I want to

         23  bring this back to the issue of North Central Bronx

         24  and HHC, not the Department of Homeless Services,

         25  which the Committee on General Welfare oversees this
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          2  agency. That is what I am saying. And I am assuming,

          3  Commissioner, I am allowing these questions because

          4  really the programs, the implementation within this

          5  agency falls under the purview of the Council's

          6  Committee on General Welfare. That is why maybe some

          7  of us who are not members are not aware of the

          8  program.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: At some point,

         10  I heard the Chairman DiBrienza suggest, I think I

         11  heard that there is a need to do something jointly

         12  at some point.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: At some point

         15  I also will suggest that perhaps, if it has never

         16  been done before, perhaps where there is a Committee

         17  hearing, a meeting, you might entertain bringing in

         18  Mary Pinkett from Government Operations.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, again, let

         20  me be clear. The reason why I join my colleague, the

         21  Chairman of the Committee on General Welfare is,

         22  because the Department of Homeless Services falls

         23  under that Committee. The reason why I want a joint

         24  hearing, because they are going to move to implement

         25  a program in one of the Health and Hospitals, oh,
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          2  not one, in several of the Health and Hospitals

          3  Corporation's facilities of which this Committee is

          4  the overseer of HHC.

          5                 The question that I want to get clear

          6  is, the reason why Commissioner Neal Cohen is not

          7  sitting there, not because he is Commissioner of

          8  Health --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Why don't you

         10  subpoena them?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES:  The reason why

         12  Commissioner Neal Cohen was summonsed to come was

         13  because he is the Commissioner of the Department of

         14  Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

         15  Services, of which the article that I read, and the

         16  memorandum that I saw, did not come from HHC, did

         17  not come from the Department of Homeless Services,

         18  it came within the Department of Mental Health and

         19  Mental Retardation saying, oh, by the way, rumors

         20  says North Central is closing so we are

         21  disqualifying them because they were part of an RFP

         22  to provide services at the location. When I get a

         23  letter from the Mayor's Office indicating that not

         24  only because of the mosquito emergency, but there is

         25  a hurricane that will come and hit us or at least
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          2  have impact on the City this weekend, and because

          3  Commissioner Neal Cohen is the Commissioner of

          4  Health, that is why he is not here.

          5                 I have every intention of bringing

          6  Commission Neal Cohen before this Committee to

          7  answer about that memorandum, that internal

          8  memorandum, which disqualifies North Central in an

          9  RFP process, because of rumors. So, that is why

         10  Commissioner Neal Cohen is not here.

         11                 Now, having said that, Council Member

         12  Rivera.

         13                 Now, for the record, before I move

         14  on, because I do have questions for HHC and,

         15  Commissioner, again, you can stay there, I always

         16  love to have you before me.

         17                 Let me say for my colleagues, I just

         18  received, which came in today, today is the 15th, in

         19  my office, from Scott Cantone, who is the Director

         20  of City Legislative Affairs from the Mayor's Office

         21  on Legislative Affairs, if you recall both of my

         22  colleagues from the Bronx, at the hearing,

         23  especially Council Member Eisland, Carrion and

         24  Rivera, during the hearing there were five questions

         25  that were asked of Dr. Luis Marcos to provide this
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          2  Committee. I want to thank Scott Cantone, but I want

          3  you to know that I will make sure that every one of

          4  the members of this Committee, in addition to the

          5  members in the Bronx, get a copy of the affiliation

          6  contract between University Group Medical Associates

          7  and the Jacobi Medical Center North Central Bronx

          8  Hospital, you requested to see the affiliation, the

          9  Mayor's Office provided it, you requested the

         10  schedule of the shuttle services from North Bronx

         11  Network, to and from, the provided me with it, the

         12  job description for senior level full-time

         13  administrators located at North Central Bronx

         14  Hospital, North Central Bronx' decisions letters

         15  concerning limits on admission. Remember the 60 bed

         16  capacity? So, I will instruct Jose Orengo to make

         17  sure that every member of the Committee gets copies

         18  of this, in addition every member of the Bronx

         19  Delegation who is affected by this, any questions,

         20  please feel free to direct them to the Chair and I

         21  will be more than happy to work with Scott Cantone

         22  in securing any other information that we need.

         23                 Let me be clear, I don't know where

         24  Scott Cantone got it, but it is being whispered that

         25  it came from Laray Brown's office. All I know is the
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          2  signature on this is Scott Cantone. I don't care

          3  where I get it from, I want to go on record. We ask

          4  for certain documentations, we received it.

          5                 Now, let me go to HHC on questions

          6  that I have. And Commissioner, wait, I will not be

          7  disrespectful. Council Member Carrion, you have a

          8  question?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Yes. Thank

         10  you, Mr. Chair. Actually, I appreciate the fact that

         11  you are letting me jump in now because I have to

         12  leave in about ten minutes.

         13                 I think there is a famous line in a

         14  movie, what we have here is a failure to

         15  communicate, I think you have heard that line

         16  before. And I think one of the problems that I see

         17  fundamentally is that we are learning about things

         18  that the Administration is going to do and agencies

         19  are going to do or propose to do or plan to do, how

         20  ever smart, or how ever ridiculous they are, most

         21  often through the press, as opposed to in a

         22  respectful deliberative manner through

         23  communication. And it is very unfortunate. You know,

         24  we learned about this wild idea of using hospital

         25  beds through the press and then we have to react as
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          2  opposed to plan and work together to solve, you

          3  know, problems. And I think that it assumes that

          4  somebody knows better and everybody knows less and

          5  is not as smart as the person who knows better, and

          6  so we are going to do this because we know better

          7  for the rest of you and then you guys catch up and

          8  figure it out and ask your questions later. I think

          9  it is unfair. I don't think it is the proper way to

         10  govern this City. I think it is disrespectful to us

         11  as elected officials, and I think it is

         12  disrespectful to our community.

         13                 We know what we need and what we

         14  want. North Central Bronx provides an important

         15  service to the West Bronx Community, and I think

         16  that there has to be meaningful dialogue about the

         17  future of that institution, and every other

         18  institution in this great City.

         19                 And, you know, if you sense a little

         20  frustration and anger, it is because there is some

         21  here.

         22                 You know, and I try to stay

         23  relatively unemotional in this process and objective

         24  because I think we can solve almost any problem, but

         25  sometimes you trust that you have established a kind
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          2  of respectful communication with people and then you

          3  don't get that communication back and you don't get

          4  that respect back and I think it is very

          5  unfortunate.

          6                 Having said that, this plan that I

          7  think is not smart at all, I think it is an

          8  inappropriate use of a health institution, but it

          9  does require the Administration to do one thing, is

         10  to decertify beds by sending a letter to the

         11  Planning Division at the State Commissioner's Office

         12  and then the State Commissioner of Health is

         13  supposed to approve it. Has this letter been sent?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Wait a second. I

         15  guess Laray Brown can answer that because it relates

         16  directly to HHC. But I thought you told us that

         17  there is no decertification of any beds.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Oh, I wasn't

         19  here, I am sorry. I arrived late.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't you

         21  respond.

         22                 MS. BROWN: Councilman, I don't think

         23  you were in the room when I mentioned it. The spaces

         24  proposed to be used at North Central Bronx Hospital

         25  and at Harlem Hospital, those are not spaces where
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          2  there are currently any operations in them.

          3                 So, inasmuch as we are talking about

          4  empty space, we would not have to request for

          5  decertification of beds. What I had explained was we

          6  do because the square footage is part of the total

          7  square footage of the hospital, although I have to

          8  say, and I didn't mention this before, at Harlem the

          9  space is not in the hospital building, it is in a

         10  separate building, a block, around the corner, but

         11  the total square footage of the campus is taken into

         12  consideration in the establishment of the

         13  reimbursement rate and it is for that reason and

         14  under the regulations of Article 28 that we would

         15  have to apprise the State Department of Health, not

         16  because of bed decertification.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And the

         18  reduction of the total square footage of health care

         19  delivery would affect the reimbursement rate?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Well, again, it is not the

         21  issue of reduction for health care delivery, right

         22  now the space is not being used for health care

         23  delivery.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: No, I mean, I

         25  said space.
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          2                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Health care

          4  delivery space in a hospital.

          5                 MS. BROWN: Yes, hospital space.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, that kicks in

          8  when the state, if it chooses, and I think you

          9  forgot to say, so if you are going to enlighten,

         10  Council Member Carrion, the one thing that she left

         11  out and I wish you would pick up is the following:

         12                 I asked the question about what kicks

         13  in these -- what was the word you used? Sanctions.

         14                 MS. BROWN: Or possible sanctions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right, possible

         16  sanctions. And as you were explaining it, then you

         17  used the square footage, which that the state then

         18  can impose against HHC, and one of the areas you

         19  mentioned was hospital reimbursement.

         20                 MS. BROWN: Right, and that would not

         21  be considered a sanction per se. That is -- and you

         22  said, what are the possible actions, right? There

         23  are sanctions, that is one thing, that could be, but

         24  there is so diminimus a possibility of that. But

         25  another action could be the state would say, well,
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          2  right now we have 10,000 square feet that is built

          3  into the formula for your rate. You are proposing to

          4  take away 1,000 square feet of that and then we

          5  restructure your rate. I mean, that is a

          6  possibility.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you for

          8  your technical explanation, and I am sure if we

          9  spend enough time we can peel off enough layers to

         10  make almost any point.

         11                 But anyway, and I am certain that the

         12  Chair is quite capable of doing that, and we will

         13  probably do that after I leave. I am going to take

         14  the privilege of the microphone and ask, with all

         15  due respect to the Chair, a relatively related

         16  question about the HHC Board member appointment.

         17  This issue is still pending and I think there is an

         18  HHC Board meeting coming up. I am just wondering,

         19  Mr. Chairman, we still have this thing floating

         20  around for years now.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I think really in

         22  fairness, HHC has no real role on that. My

         23  understanding, as having been briefed by the

         24  Speaker's Office, after not only the Committee and

         25  the Council voted for the nominee, I am under the
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          2  impression that now it is under investigation by the

          3  Department of Investigation from the Mayor's Office,

          4  and unless that gets cleared, then and only then

          5  will then the Mayor either appoint or reject and

          6  then we step back in. But right now, as I understand

          7  it, that is going through the Department of

          8  Investigation, the Mayor's Department of

          9  Investigation, on this nominee.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         13  Eisland.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Let me just

         15  go back on two points. You just raised a point that

         16  needs to be further carried through --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I also want

         18  to be clear --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: And that is

         20  the space --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This hearing was

         22  to deal with HHC, and I am going to be blunt, that I

         23  said in the press, that they lied to this Committee,

         24  and we have not gotten to that point yet. It is not

         25  about squarage (sic), it is not about programs, it
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          2  was about the fact that at your request we were

          3  trying to deal with North Central and they came

          4  before us and they lied.

          5                 So, I just want to say that for the

          6  record.

          7                 Council Member Eisland.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I questioned

          9  the space that was being used and what was done to

         10  it, and there has been discussion by myself about

         11  the question of decertification and you answered

         12  that adequately. But this is space that is being

         13  used, previously used for hospital and

         14  health-related services.

         15                 There has been a discontinuation of

         16  the rehabilitation inpatient unit, does this space,

         17  was this space used for any of that?

         18                 MS. BROWN: Yes, Ma'am. It has been

         19  used for the rehabilitation services, but it has

         20  been empty, and as the Commissioner had said, it has

         21  been long empty, we didn't close it for purposes of

         22  making it available for the emergency use by the

         23  DHS. But, yes, Ma'am, it had been rehab space.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And where is it

         25  now?
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          2                 MS. BROWN: Meaning rehab space?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Where is it now?

          4                 MS. BROWN: The rehab inpatient

          5  services have been moved to Jacobi Hospital, as we

          6  mentioned at the last hearing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And in order to

          8  do that, do you need state approval?

          9                 MS. BROWN: We don't need -- well,

         10  yes, we do need state approval to add to the

         11  compliment of beds at Jacobi. We have space there as

         12  well, so we don't need approval to do rehab

         13  services, but we do have to let them know, which we

         14  have, to let them know that instead of having 25

         15  beds at NCB and 15 beds at Jacobi, we are going to

         16  have X number.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Did they respond

         18  to your letter?

         19                 MS. BROWN: On rehab services?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I know if I say

         21  yes to you I would have to go find the letter.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

         23                 MS. BROWN: I know that, I have to

         24  check to see if we have ever gotten their formal

         25  response back. But we have made the request.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

          3  Eisland, although I put her off and I am getting

          4  right to the point, because I am the Chairman, the

          5  buck stops here.

          6                 MS. BROWN: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If you, again, I

          8  am not questioning the authority.

          9                 MS. BROWN: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If you

         11  transferred a service from one hospital to the

         12  other, the question is do you have to notify the

         13  state?

         14                 MS. BROWN: The answer is yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         16                 And does the state, in the absence of

         17  yes and no, do they have to put it in writing, or do

         18  you have the right to implement without the writing?

         19                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If you have got

         21  it in writing, would you give this Committee the

         22  copy and I will share it with the members?

         23                 MS. BROWN: I will, through Mr.

         24  Cantone's Office, share with you any correspondence

         25  that we have received from the state with regards to
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          2  the transfer of the services, of course.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

          4  Eisland.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Continuing

          6  with the reason that the first hearing was called at

          7  my request in conjunction with Council Member Robles

          8  about what I believe is a self-fulfilling prophecy

          9  of Health and Hospitals, nothing brings that home

         10  clearer to me than what Commissioner Oesterreich

         11  said, you said that you found this space to be empty

         12  and deteriorated, that is what you said on the

         13  record. I wrote it down. You said it was empty and

         14  deteriorated. How can Health and Hospitals

         15  Corporation -- excuse me. Did you have a

         16  disagreement to what I just said?

         17                 MS. BROWN: No, we were just trying to

         18  decide who would respond to your question, I am

         19  sorry.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: That's fine.

         21  Actually, Ms. Brown, I guess this is in your court.

         22                 How can Health and Hospitals

         23  Corporation, and you are representing them today,

         24  although you were not the people who made, the

         25  person who made the statement on the record at the
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          2  first hearing, say that there isn't a plan, that

          3  there isn't a self-fulfilling prophecy to empty this

          4  hospital and to close this hospital when in fact

          5  another agency finds empty and deteriorated space,

          6  when in fact the service that was moved out was and

          7  is still needed in this hospital, it is now my

          8  information that the wellness center, which is at

          9  NCB, which is a vital service which provides

         10  preventative medicine and preventative programs, is

         11  also about to be moved to Jacobi Hospital.

         12                 How can we keep hearing from Health

         13  and Hospitals that they don't want to close this

         14  hospital?

         15                 MS. BROWN: I will respond to the

         16  first part of your question as to the deteriorated

         17  space comment, and I can't interpret what the

         18  Commissioner was saying, I believe, though, that he

         19  was responding to that question in a general fashion

         20  to both units, to both facilities.

         21                 It is my understanding that the space

         22  at NCB really needed nominal work. My understanding

         23  was it just needed the doors to be able to be closed

         24  or locked, and the cribs to be moved in, instead of

         25  hospital beds.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I understand

          3  your response. It is not the response to my

          4  question. My question is that there was a rehab

          5  inpatient unit moved out, certainly something that

          6  community needs, and now there is another service

          7  that is coming from the homeless to move into that

          8  space, which is not a health-related service.

          9                 MS. BROWN: And the completion of my

         10  response to you, Councilwoman, was that I do not

         11  believe that the space that was vacated by the

         12  moving of the rehab buildings was deteriorated, that

         13  it was empty space, but that when we were running a

         14  rehab unit, I would dare say that that service was

         15  not being delivered in deteriorated space.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Well, there

         17  is obviously a disagreement, I am sure that

         18  Commissioner Oesterreich didn't plan to have a

         19  dialogue of argument between the two of you

         20  publicly, but his term, I didn't ask him was it

         21  deteriorated, you volunteered that.

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Absolutely,

         23  but I was making reference to both of the

         24  facilities.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Which both?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Harlem and

          3  North Central Bronx. And in any case I can report to

          4  you that while we did paint up, in other words, new

          5  paint, fresh paint, and some very minor things at

          6  North Central Bronx, that was all that we needed to

          7  do, whereas we needed to do more extensive things at

          8  the Kountz Building at the Harlem Hospital.

          9                 When I talked about this, I talked

         10  about it in the general situation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Believe me, I

         12  get the point, and anybody who goes to NCB gets the

         13  point because the point is that the hospital is not

         14  being kept up by Health and Hospitals in the way

         15  that it should. I asked another question, and Mr.

         16  Chair, it is my last question at the moment, the

         17  Wellness Center at NCB, is that another space that

         18  we are going to find empty, somebody else will then

         19  claim they need to use it for? Is NCB planning to

         20  move, or rather Health and Hospitals going to take

         21  the wellness center and move it to Jacobi?

         22                 MS. BROWN: I have to confirm that. I

         23  really don't know. I will have to look into that and

         24  get back to you about the moving of the wellness

         25  center program.
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          2                 I don't know about every single

          3  program in every one of our facilities, and what is

          4  being contemplated as to its expansion or to

          5  relocation, but I commit to responding to that

          6  question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Can we

          8  respond in faster than a month? I mean that is one

          9  phone call, can we do that within 24 hours please?

         10                 MS. BROWN: Yes, Ma'am.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: However, let me

         14  go back, I will call Councilman Reed and then I

         15  really want to go back to the questions that brought

         16  us to this hearing.

         17                 And I must say that I hope we don't

         18  let this die today, that we follow through on these

         19  issues.

         20                 At the last hearing, one of the

         21  biggest complaints that I heard from the people of

         22  the Bronx and my colleagues from the Bronx was the

         23  lack of communication. If Council Member Eisland is

         24  correct on this new transfer movement, what have

         25  you, let me go back to the question at hand: Each
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          2  hospital facility has a Community Advisory Board, a

          3  CAB, correct?

          4                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If what she is

          6  saying is correct, has there been dialogue and

          7  communications with the CAB about the moving of this

          8  program, and since you can't give me the answer

          9  because you don't know, I want to repeat: The CABs,

         10  as I understand it, and correct me if I am wrong,

         11  get appointed, i.e. by two mechanisms: One, the

         12  executive director of the facility, correct?

         13                 MS. BROWN: Correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And second, the

         15  Borough President of the respective borough makes

         16  recommendations to serve and sit on that board, is

         17  that correct?

         18                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, hopefully, if

         20  that CAB is really being communicated, then those

         21  members that represent the interest of the Borough,

         22  i.e., the appointment of the Borough President,

         23  should be bringing back through the Borough

         24  President and those that they work with about the

         25  upcoming of these moves; is that --
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          2                 MS. BROWN: I would hope so, yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. But if they

          4  don't get communicated, if it does not become an

          5  issue of the agenda by the Executive Director, then

          6  they can't.

          7                 So, first let's find out whether,

          8  one, that is true, and second, I want to repeat, if

          9  it is true, why do we have CABs and members sitting

         10  there, and I got members of the CAB not knowing what

         11  is going on. So, having said that, you will get back

         12  to us on that one.

         13                 Before I get to my questions on HHC

         14  and the hearing and the paper reporting, let me call

         15  in a member, because I am sure he was caught off

         16  guard too like we were, unbeknownst to us Harlem

         17  Hospital may not be physically, but it is within the

         18  catchment area that he represents and by the way, he

         19  is a member of this Committee, so I don't want to

         20  leave the impression that we are just concerned with

         21  North Central, this hearing is about now we find out

         22  also Harlem Hospital, so Council Member Reed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chair. And, yes, you predicted much of my line of

         25  questioning, and I will try not to be repetitive of
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          2  what many of my colleagues say, but for the record,

          3  I do need to state that I was as appalled as anybody

          4  else as we sat through a hearing in August about

          5  North Central Bronx. In fact, I was at home the

          6  following night when the report came on television

          7  and someone was visiting me from out of town, we

          8  were discussing politics and whether people relate

          9  to one another or not. And I said, you know, it's

         10  amazing, I sat, because I sat over there, less than

         11  eight feet from the Commissioner, for almost three

         12  hours, less than eight feet from the man, and never

         13  once heard that we were going to use the very

         14  facility that we were discussing for anything other

         15  than hospital space. So, the message gets put out

         16  far and wide that this administration is not

         17  cooperating with the Council when in fact I think

         18  over the last few months there have been at least

         19  some overtures that we might have dialogue on an

         20  adult basis. That is not an adult basis to sit eight

         21  feet from a person and that is certainly not

         22  respectful.

         23                 My questions are, much of the

         24  discussion has been, rightfully so, about North

         25  Central Bronx, my colleagues, the Chair of the
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          2  Committee I think have defined where we should be

          3  going with this, but is it my understanding that we

          4  have not put homeless people in Harlem Hospital?

          5                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: For the same

          7  reasons that you are discussing North Central Bronx,

          8  and it is just part of your plan?

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I have a

         10  plan that, if necessary I need to use Harlem

         11  Hospital, I will put homeless people in for single

         12  overnight stays, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And based on

         14  this same emergency that we have discussed before?

         15                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: What part of the

         17  hospital is it you are going to use for this, that

         18  you propose to use for this?

         19                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The

         20  proposal is the Kountz Building.

         21                 MS. BROWN: The Kountz Pavilion.

         22                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: The Kountz

         23  Pavilion, which is not part of the regular hospital.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, this is not

         25  beds that we are presently using or certified, all
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          2  the same ground that you have covered with North

          3  Central Bronx, is that it?

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I believe

          5  so.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And that is the

          7  cover that you are going to use with the community

          8  when you go there and bring those people in?

          9                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I am sorry,

         10  the cover? What do you mean by that, Councilman?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That is the

         12  excuse, most people understand that terminology,

         13  that is what you are going to explain to the

         14  community is you are not now using those for

         15  hospital beds so therefore you didn't have to

         16  explain it and you are not diminishing services,

         17  that is what cover means.

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: That is

         19  somewhat a frayed term, I would prefer "reason" as

         20  --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Excuse, cover

         22  up, reason.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Well,

         24  excuse is also somewhat frayed a term, why don't we

         25  just stick to reason.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Let's go with

          3  explanation.

          4                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: That's even

          5  better.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That is the one

          7  you are going to use.

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Absolutely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Is the director

         10  of Harlem Hospital aware of this plan?

         11                 MS. BROWN: The director of Harlem

         12  Hospital is very much aware of the potential and

         13  only as back-up use of the space on the ninth floor

         14  of the Kountz Pavilion, which is now being used for

         15  storage and office space. It is an unused office. It

         16  is an old -- the floor is essentially vacant and is

         17  being used for storage and it has offices in it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So the issues

         19  really sound identical in the sense of North Central

         20  Bronx and Harlem Hospital, there is no distinctions

         21  that are being made here, but I do think that also

         22  for the record that it should be stated as certainly

         23  this Council Member and I, I know I can go out and

         24  say this for all of us, in no means characterized

         25  meaning to disparage people who are homeless in this
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          2  discussion about whether they should be placed in a

          3  hospital. No, this is not a characterization of

          4  individuals as homeless, it is less than worthy of a

          5  decent place to stay, so I am beginning to hear the

          6  tone of this, that people could try to interpret

          7  that way so I am trying to avoid that

          8  interpretation.

          9                 Lastly, I do think it id ironic that

         10  we are having this discussion because I am sitting

         11  here, I remember being stunned about three weeks

         12  before all of this event that I got a phone call,

         13  which was pleasant, out of the clear blue sky from

         14  President Marcos, he initiated the conversation, to

         15  just discuss with me, because it is part of my

         16  catchment area, about some shifting of the chairs on

         17  the Titanic that was going to happen with services

         18  here from one network to another, but he just wanted

         19  me as the elected representative to know what they

         20  were thinking. This was out of the clear blue sky I

         21  got this phone call.

         22                 Three weeks later that very same

         23  president didn't think it was necessary to call this

         24  very same Council Member about what their thinking

         25  was. So, it just constantly puts us as to whether we
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          2  should believe the explanations that are offered to

          3  us.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me, before I

          6  conclude with some of the questions, and then let me

          7  just say this to my colleagues from the Bronx, I

          8  will have my Counsel -- one of the things that I

          9  also asked at that hearing which I saw that Laray

         10  Brown did give -- actually I addressed it to him,

         11  and especially -- please -- especially from the

         12  Bronx, folks, because later on you will tell me that

         13  you don't get it, I am addressing the Bronx people.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: You say the

         15  Bronx, we are very concerned.  A few years ago you

         16  were just a member of the Committee, just like I

         17  was, we were very concerned because the entire

         18  Lincoln Hospital was going to be decertified because

         19  it was illegally used to warehouse equipment on some

         20  other floors, and we are talking about warehousing

         21  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me point out

         23  that I will provide every member of the Bronx

         24  Delegation a copy of our request about who are the

         25  members of this CAB, and every facility has a
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          2  Community Advisory Board, and they are appointed by

          3  two people, not the City Council members, they are

          4  appointed by the Executive Director of the facility,

          5  and the Borough President.

          6                 And let me point out that in North

          7  Central Bronx Hospital, as of August 10th, where

          8  they are supposed to have 21 members, only 11

          9  members are currently serving. That means there are

         10  ten vacancies. And I suggest that you look at which

         11  ones are Borough Presidents, and which ones are

         12  executive director, and urge that not only do we

         13  have people that want to serve, recommend and get

         14  those vacancies filled.

         15                 At Jacobi, where you are supposed to

         16  have 30 members, only 15 members are currently

         17  serving. There are 15 vacancies.

         18                 Laray, may I also respectfully

         19  request the same data on every HHC facility of the

         20  11 acute care facilities, including -- because I see

         21  the diagnostic treatment centers also have CABs,

         22  correct?

         23                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So wherever there

         25  is a CAB, and I appreciate this, would you give me a
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          2  listing to give to every Council member of who they

          3  are, who makes the recommendations for appointments,

          4  who makes the appointments, okay?

          5                 Now, having said that, let me ask you

          6  something, on the 10th of August, you came with

          7  President Dr. Luis Marcos. And he, on that Committee

          8  stated, that there was no plan to close NCB, and in

          9  fact you described improvement in the management

         10  structure of NCB and you describe services

         11  improvement. However, HHC failed to inform this

         12  Committee and this Chair, that the Corporation,

         13  along with the Administration, and the Department of

         14  Homeless Services was planning to house homeless

         15  citizens at NCB and Harlem Hospital.

         16                 Was the Corporation aware before and

         17  at the hospital that there were plans to change the

         18  usage of a certain area of either NCB or Harlem

         19  Hospital?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Yes, I had mentioned

         21  earlier this afternoon there have been requests that

         22  have been made of the Corporation a couple of weeks

         23  before August 10th, a request from the sister

         24  agency, that they would like for us to make

         25  available temporary space as back up for their
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          2  potential use in the case of an emergency. These

          3  were discussions, there was not a plan yet. There

          4  was no formal proposal at the point of August 9th,

          5  and as I have said earlier, and we apologize if

          6  there was a perception that we were misleading,

          7  lying or not disclosing information about the future

          8  of NCB, but, number one, because there was not in

          9  fact any plan effectuated, number two, because we

         10  believed that this was going to be very temporary

         11  and only as back-up through tertiary, that it would

         12  not be inconsistent with or competing with or

         13  obviating any of our future improvements for North

         14  Central Bronx.

         15                 If I may just say one more sentence,

         16  every day, as a hospital that has space, or

         17  buildings on large campuses, we get constant

         18  requests, not just from City agencies, but from

         19  other community-based organizations for potential

         20  use, rental, co-location of services, so we did not

         21  consider this to be extraordinary. We do have empty

         22  spaces in these hospitals, as I believe you heard at

         23  that hearing, and I know that you have heard it at

         24  other hearings, where we have the reduction in

         25  utilization of those hospitals significant, and
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          2  those hospitals in particular, but across our system

          3  we have a lot of buildings, we have large campuses

          4  and a diminution of inpatient utilization because of

          5  managed care, competition and advancements in health

          6  care, we have empty space.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Here is my

          8  question: Is it fair to say that before the hearing

          9  I reached out to the Mayor's Office and HHC to meet

         10  with me and to allow HHC and the Senior Vice

         11  President of the Network, to walk me through, to

         12  educate me so that when I presided over the hearing,

         13  that I will be fair to both the components or the

         14  resolution and HHC; is that correct?

         15                 MS. BROWN: Absolutely. And we

         16  appreciated that very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine. But was

         18  HHC, and I know it to be a fact, aware that there

         19  were plans to whether implemented or not, to use in

         20  this case, I wasn't aware of Harlem, but I was aware

         21  of -- and I thought the hearing was about North

         22  Central, I repeat, if we have this trust, you know,

         23  I try to be as honest as I can, whether I like it or

         24  I don't and vice versa, then why did anyone not at

         25  least as a courtesy inform the Chair, oh, by the
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          2  way, if in the event this hearing is taking place

          3  you might somewhere along the line find out that

          4  this is going on, why was I not informed?

          5                 MS. BROWN: It was an oversight.  And

          6  I agree that it was not fair and it was not

          7  courteous. But, again, our thoughts were this was

          8  not, there was no plan effectuated, but we

          9  apologize.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Second, before I

         11  ask the second part, let me ask you this: On the

         12  hearing, the Borough President of the Bronx

         13  complained that he reached out to the Corporation

         14  and to President Marcos himself, that there was a

         15  borough board, I believe it was a borough service

         16  board meeting, where he was supposed to personally

         17  come and at the last minute called saying that he

         18  could not come but he sent Mr. Orlando. Do you

         19  remember that discussion?

         20                 MS. BROWN: Yes, sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And both the

         22  Administration, the president, I asked and you

         23  agreed. So, have you reached out to the Borough

         24  President of the Bronx, and has there been this

         25  meeting where you have come and met with the
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          2  service, the Borough Service Board?

          3                 MS. BROWN: What we agreed to do was

          4  to reach out to the Borough President and to

          5  schedule a meeting with the Borough President. We

          6  did have that -- we did do that. We had a meeting

          7  with the Borough President yesterday, and the

          8  agreement with the Borough President was that he

          9  would schedule a borough service board, a borough

         10  board meeting, a future borough board meeting. But I

         11  understood to be the commitment and in fact your

         12  request was that we first had the meeting with the

         13  Borough President.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, my last

         15  question, because I think that, you know, after

         16  three hours, I think we have gone for -- you know, I

         17  have a little problem with this scenario. The

         18  question has two parts: One, for the record, so as

         19  of this moment you have not moved ahead with the

         20  plan to physically move homeless families into

         21  either/or north central or Harlem Hospital; is that

         22  fair to say?

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It is an

         24  absolutely correct statement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And HHC, is it
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          2  fair to say that while emergency and what have you,

          3  that unless you get a positive acceptance of the

          4  plan by the State Department of Health and this

          5  Commissioner, that you will aggressively tell DHS

          6  that they cannot move forward with this plan?

          7                 MS. BROWN: That is not fair to say.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What?

          9                 MS. BROWN: That is not fair to say. I

         10  can't say yes to that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You can't what?

         12                 MS. BROWN: I can't say yes to that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, fine, I

         14  accept that.

         15                 In the hearing when we discussed this

         16  North Central, the underutilization of beds at both

         17  NCB and Harlem Hospital was named by the

         18  Administration as a main reason to use beds for the

         19  homeless, yet as of -- and I am talking about what I

         20  read. What I read. This is what I read. Yet, at the

         21  August hearing you stated, "you" meaning HHC, that

         22  better marketing of NCB was a priority of the

         23  Corporation in order to improve the bed count.

         24                 Now, how do you improve and

         25  marketing, when already one of two things are
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          2  happening; one, services are being relocated to

          3  Jacobi, and, two, the more space that becomes

          4  available, the easier it is, because again, you

          5  don't want spaces to just sit around, you want to be

          6  reimbursed. I am assuming that this relationship

          7  between you and them is because you are going to get

          8  reimbursed for whatever you provide them; is that

          9  correct?

         10                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, which means

         12  that now you are receiving a revenue that you may

         13  not have received because space was not being used.

         14  But if under the mandate now of managed care, that

         15  now people have to be under HMO, you are not going

         16  to get to that point unless you are able to sell

         17  your facilities as being one of the --  like I am

         18  seeing Staten Island, not the HHC, the voluntary I

         19  am talking about, the best thing is here, and I look

         20  at some of the other hospitals like voluntary

         21  hospitals saying Brooklyn Hospital, how do we then

         22  turn that, if you expect to survive, in this health

         23  environment?

         24                 MS. BROWN: I had hoped that you had

         25  seen some of our -- we have a new marketing campaign
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          2  for HHC, and in fact in Brooklyn we have several

          3  very, very large billboards that say, HHC, public

          4  and proud, better than ever and list our hospitals

          5  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Give us those

          7  locations in writing so maybe I will go out in

          8  Brooklyn, I hope it is around North Brooklyn --

          9                 MS. BROWN: Yes, I know there is one

         10  at Kingsbridge and there is one off of Williamsburg,

         11  I will give you the exact location.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine.

         13                 MS. BROWN: And I have been told you

         14  can't miss them.

         15                 But that is not an answer to your

         16  question, I just thought I would give you that

         17  information.

         18                 We don't see as contradictory the

         19  point that we made at the hearing, which was we are

         20  marking the North Central Bronx Health Services.

         21  There are many, many wonderful things, exciting

         22  things, unique things in terms of services that

         23  North Central Bronx has, and particularly their

         24  ambulatory care services. They are probably premiere

         25  in the Borough, in terms of their outpatient, their
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          2  primary care services, their services to children,

          3  their services to persons with behavioral health

          4  problems, et cetera. We are marketing those services

          5  aggressively.

          6                 However, as you know, Councilman, we

          7  could market, and many other hospitals, not just

          8  HHC, are marketing up the kazoo, but there will

          9  never be a day where we go back in terms of health

         10  care, health care industry, where a hospital that

         11  was built for 457 beds is going to be back at a full

         12  compliment of 457 beds, because that is not any of

         13  our reality.

         14                 So, we see the need to market those

         15  services that we know are needed in the community,

         16  i.e. expansive, comprehensive, responsive, primary

         17  health care services, and the inpatient services

         18  that support the health care needs of the patients

         19  who get those health care services and an example or

         20  evidence of that is also our expansion of particular

         21  outpatient services podiatry, renal dialysis,

         22  vision, we have a new vision center, our behavioral

         23  health services, and it is unfortunate that the

         24  Councilwoman received information about a partial

         25  hospital program that I think was referenced that it
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          2  wasn't in operation, and I wrote that note to follow

          3  up and find out what the status of that program is.

          4                 So, we don't see what we said as

          5  contradictory, because we truly believe that we were

          6  helped, we had been asked by our sister agency to

          7  help out on a temporary basis, not a long-term basis

          8  in the case of an emergency, in the case they needed

          9  us, but this was not for us a revenue stream

         10  opportunity here, this was to help another agency

         11  out in case they needed the space.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I do have

         13  witnesses, and in fairness to them, I want to get to

         14  hear them. May I suggest that somebody from HHC

         15  stays behind so that whatever they say, maybe I need

         16  to get answers again?

         17                 I know that there is a lot of, again,

         18  questions and what have you, and I am trying to,

         19  while I will join my colleagues and North Central is

         20  important, I also have to look at all of HHC

         21  facilities and today may be North Central and

         22  Harlem, tomorrow it may be WoodHull and others, so I

         23  have a concern.

         24                 Let me just say this: If there are

         25  any further plans involving HHC, if we are really
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          2  going to continue this relationship trust, because

          3  once you turn me off, well he wasn't the

          4  Commissioner then, but ask Al Curtis, if you want me

          5  to bring you in every single week, I will do so,

          6  because the worst thing you can do to this chair is

          7  not be honest with me, because I try to be honest

          8  with you. And I think the problem of this hearing,

          9  which should have never been, was that I believe

         10  that I was not told everything at the last meeting.

         11                 And I want to be clear, I hope this

         12  is the last time. Because if it is not, and they

         13  tell me that because HHC is a corporation, I will

         14  find the means of being the worst thorn to HHC.

         15  Because every year I ask and challenge my

         16  colleagues, and this year was one of the best years

         17  for HHC when it comes to this Council, and I am

         18  going to say it publicly, I will put not one dime

         19  into HHC again, if I don't believe that we are

         20  really going to be a partner. Because I cannot go

         21  back to my colleagues and talk about subsidy, about

         22  the problems you have with your diagnostic treatment

         23  centers that we address, and then all of a sudden be

         24  caught offguard.

         25                 So, I will leave it at that, and hope

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  that this is the last time that I have to call for a

          3  hearing to follow up a previous hearing. If I do not

          4  have the same kind of respect that I give to you,

          5  then I want to know in advance. And you know what?

          6  It is not the first time that we have been in court.

          7  But I am not going to tolerate information that does

          8  have impact.

          9                 And I am being nice to Marty,

         10  because, really, you know, the burden should have

         11  been on HHC to inform me of, or with all due

         12  respect, the Mayor's Office to inform me, whether I

         13  like it or not, and you know that you tell me

         14  things, you tell me not to go publicly and I do not.

         15  But I am not going to sit here and get the

         16  impression that I am munchie-munchie with the

         17  Administration, and I am selling out the Council and

         18  the Institution, when I have no knowledge of this,

         19  and I repeat, I am the one that brought you in so

         20  that I could have at least a handle on the hearing.

         21                 So, having said that, let me just end

         22  with Council Member Eisland, and then we move on.

         23  And I want to thank you, Marty, my friend.  You are

         24  going to have to deal with Steve later on, but there

         25  will come a time when I am going to bring you back
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          2  again, and it is always good to see my friends.

          3                 I wish I could say things I want to

          4  say, but I can't. However, let me say that you have

          5  always been honest and truthful to me, and that is

          6  why I have been very respectful of you.

          7                 To you, Laray Brown, before I call on

          8  my colleague, please don't take this in any way

          9  either being disrespectful or that I am not about to

         10  work with Luis Marcos and Rosa Gil. I think HHC is a

         11  unique agency that has a lot of problems and many of

         12  us hope to at least attempt to resolve. But if I

         13  don't feel I am being respected as a Chair and my

         14  colleagues feel they don't have input, then there is

         15  no reason for me to keep this dialogue.

         16                 Council Member Eisland.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         18  very much.

         19                 First, Mr. Oesterreich, I need to say

         20  both to you and to the public, that I want to echo

         21  the words of Council Member Reed. Certainly,

         22  unfortunately the whole concept of where to house

         23  the homeless has gotten mixed into the concept that

         24  I am espousing that keeps my City hospital open. It

         25  is repugnant to me that homeless families or single
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          2  homeless people spend any time in EAUs, and you have

          3  a mission to carry out, and I respect that mission

          4  and I want to aid you in any way that I can, except

          5  that I don't want to aid you in that mission if it

          6  is going to be the diminution and ultimate closing

          7  of my City hospital, and I just really want to make

          8  that both personally and professionally very clear

          9  to you.

         10                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I well

         11  understood this, this is about that particular

         12  issue, it is not about the particular service and I

         13  always accepted that Council member, and I know you

         14  for far too long to not understand that difference.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you.

         16  But I felt it was needed to be said.

         17                 Ms. Brown, this is the first time

         18  that we have met unfortunately, and we all have to

         19  remember not to shoot the messenger and you are the

         20  messenger here. But between the last hearing and

         21  this hearing, my complaints have not diminished

         22  about the lack of marketing of the hospital that is

         23  presently there.

         24                 After the last hearing, and I was

         25  told that there were going to be some new services
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          2  coming forward, I did my homework. I had my staff

          3  person call the Public Relations Department and say

          4  what new services are coming in, and I was told

          5  nothing. When I was told that by my staff, I said

          6  get back on the phone, et cetera, et cetera, et

          7  cetera, and I was told that there was some movement

          8  in podiatry, orthopedics, ophthalmology, nothing,

          9  nothing has come forward, not to me. I mean, I am

         10  not the main person that it has to come forward to,

         11  I think it is courteous to do that and certainly I

         12  want to be a cheerleader for the hospital, the

         13  general public that live around the hospital, ten,

         14  20, 30, 40 blocks away, none of them know about

         15  anything new going on there. They unfortunately, it

         16  really is unfortunate, hear the negative stuff. What

         17  does the word marketing mean in this hospital? Who

         18  is being paid to do that? Is there a department? Is

         19  it some individual's fault, or is it conceptually

         20  the fault of the Health and Hospitals? Market the

         21  bloody hospital, we, as consumers, can't be the ones

         22  to do that, you have got to do that. I beg of you.

         23                 And the third thing I want to bring

         24  up is, you mentioned a paucity of members on the

         25  CAB. The next person who is going to testify is a
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          2  former member of the CAB, a very outspoken and very

          3  involved lady, who is now, Cerico (phonetic) is the

          4  chair of the Health Committee for Community Board 7.

          5  She and other people that I know who formerly served

          6  on that board gave up. One of the reasons is they

          7  got the meeting notices two days after the meetings.

          8  What is wrong with this picture? How do we get

          9  people who want to be involved and want to aid and

         10  abet the good kind of health care that is supposed

         11  to be delivered if in fact they are not notified of

         12  the meetings in a timely fashion? That is a real

         13  symptom of a problem. Could you please take that

         14  back?

         15                 MS. BROWN: Yes. And I would like to

         16  say that, clearly, when you articulate that there is

         17  information or a lack of information about programs

         18  and improvements made at the hospital, when the

         19  Borough President mentioned that at our discussion

         20  yesterday, that was raised. We clearly have work to

         21  do.

         22                 Dr. Marcos heard that yesterday

         23  again, and we acknowledge to follow up more

         24  aggressively this time and not to lapse. And there

         25  are some work that we have committed to do with the
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          2  Borough President, with his staff and with the CAB,

          3  and I would hope that we would not have to hear this

          4  commentary when we come back, but the more we have

          5  heard about it now is there more that you can do?

          6                 But you are absolutely right, there

          7  is something that we have to do in terms of our

          8  level of marketing and outreach and information

          9  sharing. And your point about the Community Advisory

         10  Board is extremely well taken, and that also is

         11  something that we are working with the Borough

         12  President to generate information about the

         13  availability of these positions because it is

         14  important for us to strengthen our hospitals. We

         15  really do need the assistance of active individuals

         16  in the communities.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         19  very much. I hope you will include me in that

         20  equation of information and sharing and marketing

         21  and general cheerleading for a hospital that I don't

         22  get complaints about as far as service, I only get

         23  complaints about diminution of services, sending

         24  people to Jacobi.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But let me just
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          2  point out before I call on Steve DiBrienza, and then

          3  because, I always, as you know, Commissioner and

          4  Laray, I always leave the last word to both the

          5  Commissioner and to you, but let me just throw out a

          6  challenge to all of us, and that is why when I get

          7  the list of all of the CAB members, and for whatever

          8  reason, but I call upon -- I just looked at two

          9  facilities, North Central and Jacobi, and how do you

         10  expect to have communications and dialogue with the

         11  community when there are so many vacancies?

         12                 So, I want to be clear, although we

         13  don't make appointments, I suggest that every

         14  Council member of the target areas that impact those

         15  hospitals, or those facilities, either go through

         16  the Executive Director, or the Borough President, to

         17  recommend people to serve because those boards are

         18  very important, number one.

         19                 Number two, I don't want to go out of

         20  here thinking that all I did was beat you up. I want

         21  to personally, since you are the messenger, bring it

         22  back. I want to thank President Luis Marcos, who did

         23  follow up on our request, although you went from

         24  your office, or his office to your office to Scott

         25  Cantone, but I want to repeat, that there are
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          2  important documents that were given to us, among

          3  them the affiliation, and for that I want to thank

          4  the Administration, and HHC.

          5                 I also want to thank you, HHC, in

          6  terms of listening to the complaints and following

          7  through. It is so important that we correct these

          8  things.

          9                 Council Member DiBrienza.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         11  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to say I am learning

         12  a lot about the Health Committee side and the HHC

         13  side of things, of course I was here particularly

         14  because of the homeless services overlay, but I do

         15  have two questions, comments, whatever, for you.

         16                 One, I wouldn't be so quick to accept

         17  the notion, and you should tell this to the people

         18  who run your system that this is temporary in

         19  nature, unless the Department of Homeless Services

         20  is given the resources they need to move people out

         21  of the back end, they will consistently need 40, 50,

         22  60 placements, and I can show you some temporary

         23  classrooms that have been around for eight or ten or

         24  12 years.

         25                 So, I don't think temporary means for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  a winter month we are going to need it and we won't

          3  be back. So, you should really be aware of that. It

          4  may not change your position, because you are a

          5  system agency, but you should be aware of it or the

          6  bosses should, number one.

          7                 Number two, in answer to the

          8  Chairman's question about will you aggressively stop

          9  them from coming in if the state doesn't approve it,

         10  you said I can't agree with that statement, but you

         11  never said what you do agree with. Have you ever,

         12  has the Corporation ever finally answered the

         13  question or been clear on the position that, even

         14  though you expect them to approve it because of the

         15  sister agency nature, temporary, unused beds, I see

         16  all the rationale and the reasons, but are you

         17  testifying that even if the state says you can't you

         18  are going to let them do it, and put at risk all of

         19  those possible sanctions, even if they are not very

         20  possible?

         21                 MS. BROWN: What I said was that I

         22  can't at this point answer that question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Because you

         24  believe so much that you will allow it? We are

         25  asking the question if they say no, will you do it
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          2  in their face anyway?

          3                 MS. BROWN: If they say no, then we

          4  have to work within the Administration --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Go back to

          6  the drawing board.

          7                 MS. BROWN: And with the Department of

          8  Homeless Services and weight what the emergent needs

          9  are.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay.

         11                 MS. BROWN: I can't answer, that is a

         12  what if scenario.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Well, that

         14  is a frightening, I am not an expert in your area,

         15  but not only is the Chairman obviously and

         16  absolutely right, but it is pretty frightening that

         17  the Corporation wouldn't at least say, if the state

         18  says no, as much as we think they are wrong and as

         19  much as we think homeless services is worthy and as

         20  much as it is unused space and I have all of your

         21  reasons, to even say that you can't say if they say,

         22  you know, we still might do it, that is a pretty

         23  frightening position.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Mr. Chairman, let

         25  me just say, I say to you, again, like I said during
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          2  the budget hearings when some of my colleagues were

          3  complaining about the cuts to HIV and preventive

          4  services, let me be clear. Let me be clear about

          5  this Committee and this Chair. This Committee, and

          6  so long as I preside as a chair, believe in the

          7  public health system. Just like we took the battle

          8  with Coney Island Hospital, although it took close

          9  to four years to finally get it resolved and we did.

         10  I may not be around in the next four years, but any

         11  attempt by this Corporation to move forward with

         12  implementing something without clearly either I

         13  seeing a letter from the State saying it is okay

         14  with us. Then I will recommend to the Speaker to

         15  move forward legally to do what we did with Coney

         16  Island Hospital, because now it has nothing to do

         17  with the Department of Homeless Services, it has to

         18  do with a hospital.

         19                 So, so that she says yes, or she

         20  can't say yes or no, I am not worried about that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay. Thank

         22  you. I appreciate that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: This Committee

         24  will move forward to protect the Health and

         25  Hospitals Corporation interest which is the health
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          2  issues.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Well, then

          4  I am once again, you know, it renews my faith in the

          5  fact that this Committee is in good hands, and I

          6  support you in that effort.

          7                 Now, this is my wrap up for you.

          8  Temporary isn't always temporary, and I still think

          9  you should be able to say we won't do it without

         10  state permission, but he is going to make you only

         11  do it with state permission or whatever.

         12                 Now, to wrap up with you,

         13  Commissioner, I think the Committee members who are

         14  not members of my Committee should understand, I

         15  believe again that it is unfortunate that of the

         16  short time you are there and all of the good work

         17  you are doing that you put yourself in the middle of

         18  a controversy you don't need and your agency doesn't

         19  need. And you should perhaps understand that people

         20  will find it difficult, will raise questions about

         21  homeless families in hospitals and do believe it is

         22  inappropriate substantively.

         23                 More importantly, it is illegal under

         24  the law unless they have their individual cooking

         25  facilities, and the rest of the language that is in
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          2  the law for shelter placements. And you are going to

          3  end up in court, even if he doesn't through HHC,

          4  because let's say you get the state permission, with

          5  people who are going to sue you over the placement

          6  in terms of the violation of the law and you don't

          7  need it, especially if it is that low a number. What

          8  we need to be doing is figuring out ways to get you

          9  the capacity room in the middle of the system and it

         10  is at the end of the system so that you don't have

         11  40, apparently all together 40 families or so, 16

         12  and 28, maybe less, that you even seek to place in

         13  hospitals.

         14                 So, we will bring in, we will do a

         15  hearing on it, it is not what I would like to be

         16  doing with my time and I am sure it is not what you

         17  would like to be doing with your time. I thought the

         18  proposal was gone, was over, was dead in the water,

         19  but your testimony says if the numbers are up, I

         20  intend to go into at least two hospitals. And not

         21  only do you have the permission issue, which Victor

         22  will, Chairman Robles will take care of, and the

         23  courts may ultimately have to get involved in, but

         24  you have the underlying substantive violation with

         25  Local Law 19, which will also bring you to court.
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          2  And I don't know why you want to go down that road

          3  when in the short time you are there you have made

          4  so much progress in a whole different direction.

          5                 I look forward to talking to you at

          6  our hearing, perhaps we will do it as soon as

          7  schedule allows but before the end of this month.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay,

          9  Commissioner, again, Marty, my friend, I always

         10  leave the Commissioner with the last word. Let me

         11  start with you as the Commissioner and then Laray.

         12                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: Ladies

         13  first in all cases, first and foremost.

         14                 First of all, I forgot a belated

         15  Happy New Year, Council member. My apologies for not

         16  seeing you earlier on that.

         17                 I have come to expect to be in court

         18  on a whole host of issues, some of which will stem

         19  from honest differences as to interpretation --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I didn't threaten

         21  to take you to court, I said HHC, so don't get me

         22  wrong.

         23                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: No, no. And

         24  I understand that. I am responding to both the

         25  particular content and the tenor that the Chairman
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          2  of my oversight Committee has directed at me.

          3                 I expect to be in court because in

          4  fact there will be very honest differences that we

          5  will have in our opinions about the particular

          6  neighboring legislation. There will be differences

          7  in opinion about whether or not particular actions

          8  that we are taking meet the full intent of the law,

          9  the full content of the law.

         10                 I will simply say this on the

         11  particular matter as to the usage of Harlem

         12  Hospital, and North Central Bronx. The reality is

         13  that I will do what is necessary to prevent homeless

         14  families from sleeping on the floor of the EAU. And

         15  if that means --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: You should

         17  do that, that is the law.

         18                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: It goes

         19  beyond the law, Chairman, it is what is right. And,

         20  you know, if that means that you in your wisdom

         21  would then recommend that I spend an awful lot more

         22  time in court or that advocacy groups would view

         23  this as a substantial violation of our goal to never

         24  have anybody sleep on the floor of the EAU, then

         25  that so be it. And it is quite frankly where I am at
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          2  on that particular matter.

          3                 It is beyond -- we have attempted in

          4  the short tenure that I have been at the agency to

          5  set a whole bunch of things right.

          6                 I believe we have made considerable

          7  progress. I believe that this discussion has been in

          8  many instances premature. I have set up as a prudent

          9  manager, ought to do, fall back position after fall

         10  back position.

         11                 If you ask me for a guarantee that

         12  the fall back position will never be exercised, I

         13  will not give that, that is absurd, or else I

         14  wouldn't even go through that particular point.

         15                 So, let me just assure you that

         16  should the unforeseen event happen, I guess we will

         17  see each other in court, or I know I will see myself

         18  in front of an oversight hearing defending my

         19  actions, which may have resulted in my being in

         20  court, and I will be happy to do that at that

         21  particular point.

         22                 I think there is no disagreement that

         23  we are all trying to do the right thing in this

         24  particular situation, and, again, I take no umbrance

         25  at all regarding the particular concerns that have
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          2  been expressed by the Councilwoman regarding her

          3  particular community.

          4                 In any case, it has been an

          5  interesting hearing. I hope I have been able to

          6  provide some explanation as to --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You miss me, huh?

          8                 COMMISSIONER OESTERREICH: I can't say

          9  that, I have my new oversight Chairman sitting next

         10  to you.

         11                 I hope I have been able to provide

         12  some explanation as to what we are doing and how we

         13  are doing, and to try to take away some of the

         14  mystery that inherently comes out of very short

         15  pieces in the press. And I hope I have been able to

         16  do that. In any case, I want to thank you for the

         17  courtesies that you have shown to me and to the vice

         18  president.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 I will have my counsel now -- I think

         23  there are community board people and also the

         24  Borough President of Manhattan has a representative,

         25  so Jose Orengo.
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          2                 And again, Laray and Marty, thank you

          3  so much, I appreciate that.

          4                 MS. ORENGO: Elizabeth Errico.

          5  Michelle Newman, and Raymond Ocasio.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't we just

          7  come up to the mic.

          8                 And Laray, is Frank staying behind?

          9                 MS. BROWN: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good, thank you.

         11                 Before you introduce yourselves. Why

         12  don't you just sit down and please join us. Before

         13  you introduce yourself for the record, because it is

         14  technology, it is tape and we need to know who is

         15  speaking, so you will know that Frank Marine, who is

         16  within the Office of the Vice President for

         17  Intergovernmental Affairs, or I just don't know the

         18  titles, I know he is in that office, and so I see

         19  also Emani Rosa, who is also HHC, is in the room, so

         20  whatever you say I don't need to delivery, they will

         21  hear it themselves.

         22                 Having said that, why don't we just

         23  go down the line, introduce yourself and who you

         24  represent and then if you like to proceed, please do

         25  so. Just press your button for a second.
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          2                 DR. ERRICO: I am Dr. Elizabeth

          3  Errico, and I am representing Community Board 7.

          4                 MR. OCASIO: My name is Raymond

          5  Ocasio, and I am the Health Policy Analyst for the

          6  Manhattan Borough President.

          7                 MS. NEWMAN: My name is Michelle

          8  Newman, I am the Policy Analyst for Bronx Borough

          9  President Fernando Ferrer.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't you

         11  start, Doctor.

         12                 DR. ERRICO: Cutting services is

         13  emblematic of Health and Hospitals Corporation

         14  throughout the City. When fewer services are

         15  available in a hospital it deprives the agency of

         16  the opportunity to meet diverse health care needs of

         17  individuals in a community. This is what is

         18  happening at North Central Bronx.

         19                 I listen to them talk about moving

         20  rehab to Jacobi Hospital. If I have to visit my

         21  grandmother in Jacobi Hospital or my neighborhood,

         22  there is no way to get there without taking two

         23  buses or a train and a bus. I am very surprised to

         24  hear that there is a shuttle service available at

         25  North Central Bronx. Since the community knows
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          2  nothing about it, it may as well not be available.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But I assure you

          4  that we did get the schedule and I urge, not only

          5  because you are member of the community board, and I

          6  believe the Chair?

          7                 DR. ERRICO: Of the Hospitals

          8  Committee.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right. That once

         10  we disseminate the information, that we share it,

         11  and if it is not what they say it is, I want to hear

         12  about it.

         13                 DR. ERRICO: Okay. And I think it

         14  would have been appropriate, as we have been in the

         15  same location for many years, for them to have

         16  brought this to the attention of Community Board 7.

         17                 I would like to make another point

         18  with that. I have been with Community Board 7 for

         19  more than ten years, not once has North Central

         20  Bronx ever come before us with a question, a

         21  concern, an area of interest, and yet we have a

         22  revolving door with Montefiore Hospital there at

         23  least two to three times a year. Veterans Hospital,

         24  and we can't help them very much at all, to visit us

         25  at least once a year, and the Nursing Homes in the
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          2  area have a presence so that we can help to meet

          3  their needs wherever possible.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: On that issue,

          5  and I want to do this just so that I want them to

          6  make sure it is clear. It is my understanding that

          7  the networks and the facilities are supposed to be

          8  sending people, at least the facilities, to

          9  community board meetings. Because I know it happens

         10  in my district.

         11                 Now, if that is not happening in that

         12  network, then I want to know why. And that is the

         13  responsibility of the Executive Director of that

         14  facility to reach out to the Community Board, and if

         15  they don't reach out to them, he should be reaching

         16  out to them, asking to put them on the agenda to

         17  discuss whatever may be, so I am going to follow

         18  through and make sure it gets done.

         19                 DR. ERRICO: Okay. And I will say

         20  again, in ten years never.

         21                 The quality of mental health in the

         22  entire state of New York is deplorable. Nowhere else

         23  more is there a great need than in the Bronx.

         24                 In the last year, Community Board 7

         25  allowed three community-based facilities for people
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          2  with mental health needs and mental retardation to

          3  open up in Community Board 7. Not only are we aware

          4  of the needs, we are willing to commit our community

          5  to provide services.

          6                 I am shocked to hear that we lost the

          7  opportunity for an acute care to meet mental health

          8  needs. It is not as if our community doesn't have

          9  them. And it is unacceptable to the community.

         10                 I guess last, but not least, we

         11  regard every human being in Community Board 7 as

         12  ones who deserve the dignity of appropriate

         13  treatment. While, I don't want them sleeping on the

         14  floors of certain facilities, I don't want healthy

         15  people in hospitals. Hospitals by their very nature

         16  are where people come when they are sick. We cannot

         17  be sure that either the homeless or patients would

         18  not be exposed to microbes that could cause disease.

         19                 I cannot believe I sat in this room

         20  and heard that it is perfectly fine with some

         21  people. It is not perfectly fine with the members of

         22  the community of Community Board 7.

         23                 Thank you for your time.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MR. OCASIO: Hi. Good afternoon,

          3  Chairman Robles, and Council Member Eisland, how are

          4  you? Unfortunately the Borough President couldn't

          5  come because of scheduling, so she sent me today.

          6                 The Manhattan Borough President is

          7  pleased that this Committee has recognized the issue

          8  of housing homeless persons at any of the City's

          9  municipal hospitals, raises important questions and

         10  concerns that require public comment.

         11                 While Borough President Fields has

         12  been a strong supporter of the Mayor's decision to

         13  make the Department of Homeless Services a permanent

         14  independent agency, she is deeply concerned about

         15  the City's plan to house the homeless overnight at

         16  two public hospitals, specifically North Central

         17  Bronx and Harlem Hospital.

         18                 It is evident that the City, both in

         19  compliance with court orders and for human reasons,

         20  must house families in suitable overnight

         21  facilities, while their eligibility applications are

         22  under review at the Emergency Assistance Unit.

         23                 However, it is absolutely

         24  inappropriate for municipal hospitals to function as

         25  these temporary shelters. Moreover, such a plan
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          2  violates state law, as many of the Council members

          3  have mentioned earlier, both in significantly

          4  altering the use of the public hospital facilities

          5  and flouting family shelter requirements.

          6                 Certainly the shelter system's

          7  insufficient capacity and the decertification of HHC

          8  beds are two issues that must be addressed. However

          9  DHS and HHC are distinct entities, whose problems

         10  require distinct solutions.

         11                 The difficulties in the City's

         12  homeless system are manifold and must be dealt with

         13  in a comprehensive manner. The Borough President

         14  suggests that we work towards long-term solutions,

         15  such as reforming DHS' eligibility review process,

         16  as well as address the capacity issue.

         17                 Of course the development of more

         18  permanent housing for low-income families is an

         19  essential component of any true prescription for

         20  homelessness.

         21                 As regards to Harlem Hospital, the

         22  recent capital review of its facilities is evidence

         23  that a strategic plan is needed that will benefit

         24  not only the hospital but also the health needs of

         25  the community, who must also be included in such a
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          2  process.

          3                 It is also imperative that the

          4  hospital's upcoming accreditation review by the

          5  Joint Commission, scheduled for this November, not

          6  be jeopardized by any unauthorized usage of its

          7  facilities. The Borough President fears that such

          8  usage would lead to the public perception that this

          9  policy is just another step towards Harlem Hospital

         10  closing its doors, a move she strongly opposes.

         11                 Furthermore, I have been instructed

         12  to note and express the concern that the Borough

         13  President's office has been informed that the ninth

         14  floor of the Kountz Pavilion Building Facility at

         15  Harlem Hospital has begun renovations. The actual

         16  length and the scope of those renovations haven't

         17  been determined at this point, however, I would like

         18  to note that during the past rainstorm that we had,

         19  renovations had already began and the Kountz

         20  Building experienced flooding, and there was an

         21  emergency at the Pavilion itself where they had to

         22  move patients out of I believe the seventh floor, I

         23  am not absolutely sure about that. But they had to

         24  remove workers and patients out of the building and

         25  move them into the main facility.
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          2                 However, at that time when the

          3  construction was going on, they were using elevator

          4  facilities and other things which in essence made it

          5  more difficult to handle that emergency and move

          6  them out, and it actually took Dr. Palmer to

          7  actually have them cease and desist the work that

          8  they were doing in order to continue on with the

          9  movement of the patients.

         10                 So, anyway, those renovations that

         11  are currently underway are required for the facility

         12  to be considered suitable for the housing of

         13  homeless families and singles alike. These

         14  renovations are not complete.

         15                 Given the needs of the hospital

         16  system and the homeless, funds should not be

         17  expended to make these renovations, but rather to

         18  improve our public hospitals, and in separate

         19  efforts build more housing for our homeless.

         20                 More importantly, those renovations

         21  demonstrate that despite the widespread opposition

         22  to the City's plan, the lack of state approval and

         23  the potential harm to Harlem Hospital's

         24  accreditation review, the City plans to go forward

         25  with this ill-advised plan. Steps should now be
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          2  taken to prevent this.

          3                 I hope that the Committee on Health

          4  agrees that housing homeless families overnight in

          5  public hospitals is not the answer to either

          6  agency's problems and efforts are made to stop this

          7  from happening.

          8                 Two other points that I would like to

          9  just add. The Commissioner of DHS mentioned on

         10  several occasions that part of the plan included

         11  families, and as --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: What?

         13                 MR. OCASIO: Part of the plan included

         14  families to be put into these temporary facilities,

         15  and as Council Member DiBrienza has noted, they

         16  actually have even gone as far as installing cribs,

         17  if I heard him correctly. And upon my conversations

         18  with regulatory agencies and both the core counsel

         19  of the Coalition for the homeless, they have both

         20  said that under any circumstances where private

         21  and/or general facilities to cooking facilities are

         22  not provided is basically against all state

         23  regulations. So for them to just say that they were

         24  putting in beds and making facilities applicable for

         25  these homeless families, it still avoids several
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          2  other issues, as Council Member DiBrienza had

          3  mentioned.

          4                 And also, to your point earlier, we

          5  happen to have a full CAB at Harlem Hospital, all

          6  our appointees are put in place, and unfortunately

          7  they weren't told of the situation prior to being

          8  notified from us. And we heard it as you did,

          9  through the media.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say,

         12  first, to personally thank the Borough President for

         13  sending you for the testimony, and let me assure her

         14  again, because when I first heard the issue and

         15  Harlem was included, I know that I joined not only

         16  the Borough President of the Bronx, with myself and

         17  Council Member Eisland, when we sent a letter to the

         18  State Commissioner of Health, so clearly, and I

         19  added, well, I was going to say Councilwoman,

         20  Borough President Fields as part of the letter, not

         21  signing it but rather saying that because she was

         22  away, but she has joined us. So, let me be clear,

         23  and I want to repeat, so long as the State

         24  Commission of Health does not sign off, I will do

         25  everything to prevent moving forward.
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          2                 My problem is, which is we are

          3  creatures because HHC is a creature of the State, it

          4  is a corporation. And I see, as a matter of fact,

          5  you just brought me to something that there is a

          6  state hearing, by the State Assembly, as a follow-up

          7  to our meetings where I had with Council Member, the

          8  elected officials of the Bronx in the area and on

          9  addressing this and it is going to be on October the

         10  5th. Now, I respectfully suggest that we start

         11  looking at one or two things. One, is that bill that

         12  we have in Albany that will really put the Board of

         13  Directors of HHC, of which will allow the Council to

         14  make appointments, and then you will see that they

         15  cannot do what they are doing.

         16                 Second, so I urge that everyone goes

         17  to those hearings because they are state matters

         18  that need -- see, my frustration is that once they

         19  sign off, the state, there is nothing I can do.

         20                 MR. OCASIO: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So we have got to

         22  look at the state part, to make sure that our

         23  colleagues at the state level are working also with

         24  us. My frustration right now is that we have five

         25  Republicans, members of the State Senate, of which I
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          2  can't believe they don't represent HHC facilities,

          3  we can't even get a sponsor in the State Senate.

          4                 So, all I can do is bring them in and

          5  do what I am doing. So, I want to thank the Borough

          6  President, both Borough Presidents, and the

          7  community board and those interested. As long as I

          8  preside, they say that you have to get an okay from

          9  the state, and I will pursue that. Even when the

         10  state signs off, I am prepared to go to the Speaker

         11  and do like we did with Coney Island Hospital, that

         12  is to move into the Legal Arena, to challenge

         13  whether or not the public health facilities can be

         14  used for the purpose of everything other than health

         15  facilities and housing, with all due respect, is not

         16  really a health matter. So I want to be clear on

         17  that, okay?

         18                 MR. OCASIO: Yes.

         19                 MS. NEWMAN: I am here on behalf of

         20  the Bronx Borough President to deliver his

         21  testimony.

         22                 Good afternoon, Chairman Robles and

         23  members of the City Council. I am Fernando Ferrer,

         24  President of the Borough of the Bronx.

         25                 I came here before you a little over
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          2  a month ago to discuss my community's concerns that

          3  North Central Bronx Hospital would be closing. Dr.

          4  Marcos, the President of New York City Health and

          5  Hospitals Corporation, also testified at that

          6  hearing. He said that there were no plans to close

          7  NCB.

          8                 For proceeding, I would like to recap

          9  the concerns that I mentioned last month. Many of

         10  NCB's patients are uninsured and rely on this

         11  community hospital for their health care needs.

         12  There is no full-time on-site senior executive at

         13  NCB.

         14                 The Senior Vice President for the

         15  North Bronx Health Care Network, of which NCB is a

         16  part is based at Jacobi Medical Center.

         17                 The Senior Executive in charge of

         18  NCB, who is the Chief Operating Officer, is also

         19  based at Jacobi. Utilization of medical services has

         20  been on the decline at NCB. HHC has been closing

         21  beds in several units and cutting back on services

         22  in other units.

         23                 With the decline in the provision of

         24  services has come a reduction in the number of

         25  employees. Three years ago, 2,700 people were
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          2  employed at NCB, today there are only 1,200

          3  employees.

          4                 The day after the hearing, I was

          5  informed of plans to house the homeless at NCB and

          6  Harlem Hospitals, I have run into Dr. Antonio

          7  Novello, the Commissioner for the State Department

          8  of Health and to Judith Berek, of the Federal Health

          9  Care Financing Administration, urging the Department

         10  of Health and HCFA not to allow public hospitals to

         11  be used for this purpose.

         12                 I was shocked that HHC officials did

         13  not make public the plans to house homeless families

         14  at NCB and Harlem Hospitals until after the August

         15  10th hearing. Using our public hospitals for this

         16  purpose is neither a solution to the shortage of

         17  affordable housing, nor to the lack of shelters for

         18  New York City's homeless population.

         19                 The Emergency Assistance Unit located

         20  at 161st Street in the Bronx is the point of entry

         21  into the City's shelter system. The EAU is required

         22  by law to find shelter for all people who present at

         23  this location within 24 hours or risk being fined.

         24  In fact, the City paid $5 million in fines for

         25  people remaining at the EAU for longer than 24
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          2  hours. This should have been a wake up call to the

          3  City to find alternative shelter space.

          4                 I was recently made aware of

          5  additional shelter space that has become available

          6  eliminating any possible need to use public

          7  hospitals to house the homeless.

          8                 A hospital is no place for homeless

          9  families, even on a temporary basis. In addition,

         10  using this hospital for non-medical purposes creates

         11  even greater uncertainty in the community and may be

         12  viewed as another step towards the closing of NCB.

         13                 It seems that HHC was avoiding the

         14  appropriate requirements for disclosure,

         15  application, review and approval of changes in the

         16  hospital's operating certificate. This violates the

         17  facility's operating certificate as granted under

         18  article 28 of the public health law. The operating

         19  certificates for municipal hospitals require that

         20  prior to making any substantive changes to the usage

         21  of these facilities, the City must obtain a waiver

         22  from the State Department of Health.

         23                 My office will continue to monitor

         24  any efforts to place homeless families at NCB.

         25                 Since the hearing on August 10th, I
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          2  came across a July 23rd memo from the Department of

          3  Mental Health, Mental Retardation and Alcoholism

          4  Services stating that NCB was not competitive for a

          5  contract to provide mental health services because

          6  its viability for the duration of the contract,

          7  three years, was in question. This document was

          8  signed by the Associate Commissioner of the

          9  Department of Mental Health, Mental Retardation and

         10  Alcoholism Services. The Commissioner for this

         11  agency, Dr. Neal Cohen, is on the Board of HHC, and

         12  it concerns me that his staff is under the

         13  impression that NCD is slated to close.

         14                 As I have asked HHC in the past, I

         15  ask again today for an increased commitment to make

         16  NCB a viable institution. It is imperative that we

         17  not lose sight of HHC's mission of serving those in

         18  need of care regardless of ability to pay.

         19                 The Bronx deserves a quality public

         20  hospital system and NCB is a key component of that

         21  system.

         22                 In order for NCB to fulfill its

         23  mission, I call on HHC to restore rehabilitation and

         24  pediatric services to adequately provide for the

         25  residents of the Bronx, as well as to devise a
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          2  strategic plan so that NCB can be a viable and

          3  thriving institution.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Just

          6  let me make some observations. First of all, I must

          7  for the record say that the Borough President called

          8  me the day after the hearing to personally thank me

          9  for the hearing and the way it was conducted, and he

         10  also asked me would I join him in joining him to

         11  write both the State Department of Health and also

         12  the federal government. Please note that while I

         13  admit that he signed the letter, so did the chair of

         14  the Health Committee and Council Member June

         15  Eisland.

         16                 And second, let me say that while we

         17  were discussing the letter, I want it for the

         18  record, that the stumbling of the memo was because

         19  this chair personally faxed to his office the

         20  memorandum that I received from the City, not from

         21  HHC, from the agency, so I just want to be clear

         22  that he didn't stumble upon it, I sent it to him. I

         23  mean, I think in fairness, I also don't see any

         24  mention in that you were in the room, because I

         25  asked the question and I also said that I will make
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          2  sure that HHC meets with him and at that Borough

          3  Board meeting, that there is a meeting, and I am

          4  pleased to note, no thank you, but he did meet

          5  yesterday with Luis Marcos. So, you know, folks, I

          6  will remember that for next time.

          7                 But anyway, I think the issue is too

          8  important to get into this pettiness, but I want to

          9  be clear, we are all in the same boat. And so having

         10  said that, I want to again thank both the Borough

         11  President of the Bronx and Manhattan for the

         12  testimony. I want to thank you, Doctor, for you

         13  coming in, and I saw you sit here throughout this,

         14  but for the future, this Council Member and this

         15  Chair does not have quick hearings. I think the

         16  issues are too important and I don't care how long I

         17  sit here, if it means sitting here until hell

         18  freezes over, I intend to do that.

         19                 So, again, thank you so much for

         20  coming out.

         21                 I don't see any more witnesses before

         22  me, correct? Seeing no other business before us, I

         23  adjourn this hearing.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 8:33 p.m.)

         25
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